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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BEEARAETR BT —FE NP
Z+-BLFABZt+AEEBEER
SEABR2IBR BB AB2IRES
RRBFEAS UBEBTHEE :

EEER

1. B BEHE-_ZEZEZ-—-F=8=+—
BEFEZRERHERERRRE
SEHEHREM2RE

2. BEERESTUYRBRESSET H
R

3. EEREMIRRESESEEH

B ER

4. ZRIMBEBTIRBZRRE
BRER

(A) B AR Z2EERSEHA
- BERTEEBETERE=ZR
7t o 1240 £ 1,500,000,000 8%
EREECIELRG - ZZ
FERMERQAIRE BT
RO EZEREHNEEFR o ]

(B) I8 & :

(a) EARBR(D)RZAR
T —REERGHER
REAQXNADES S ([H
2 ) REBRBB (W T
XHRRE)RTEADF
—REIREBBERS
FRERDA ([BXXAR])
RADABERZE LT
THUEBENMSERSER
HESEKERZEE Y
RFFAAZEME M E S

L=

RRBEXRSES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting
of the Company will be held at 27th Floor, Wu Chung House,
213 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong on 31st August,
2001 at 9:30 a.m. for the following purposes: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements
and the reports of the Directors and auditors for the year
ended 31st March, 2001;

2. To re-elect Directors and to authorise the board of Directors
to fix their remuneration; and

3. To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of
Directors to fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

(A) “THAT the authorised capital of the Company be
increased from HK$150,000,000 to
HK$300,000,000 by the creation of 1,500,000,000
shares of HK$0.10 each, such shares to rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing issued shares
in the capital of the Company.”

() “THAT

(a) the exercise by the Directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all powers and authority of the Company
to purchase its own shares on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or on
any other stock exchange on which the shares of
the Company may be listed and recognised by the
Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock
Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in
accordance with paragraph (b) of this resolution, all
applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

REFEOARNR 2ES
W28 7 R RN B0 B fE
5] Z P R B R B R P
RAEMEMESZIZ A2
HEmRAME

RAARNREBREBERKE
AAZR@BMIETE
BzARARAHFLFZEMER
B REAQXARMMER
BEBEAQAANREIARER
BRAHBERTRAEE
MWE210% EX(a)B& 2
REASHRS &

(b)

BRARBRME - [EBEH
BINERARZEBEBZ
BHETHHRILE(UBREE
RE)ZHE

(c)

(i) A2ATERRAF
REHERE . H

ARABZRAMAE
EAEBEGRER
DRAAETTERR
BEAREHRER 2
B =

(if)

ARBRREBRRK
ELrBEBEBERER
HMEREBITARER
HWERTFTESSHED
Z B8 (& (2)) ]

(iii)

(C) [Enek :

(a) EGRHERTESZE-—RE
N REBEHE (T XA
RE)RTERQF —E
N BT O BBEREER

o
=

(&)

Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (as amended from time to time) or of
any other stock exchange, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved and
authorised;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of the shares of
the Company to be purchased by the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of
this resolution during the Relevant Period shall
not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal value of the share capital of the
Company in issue at the date of this resolution
and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a)
shall be limited accordingly; and
(c) for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the passing of
this resolution until whichever is the earlier of:
(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company; or

(i) the expiry of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of
the Company or any applicable law to be
held; or

(iii) the passing of an ordinary resolution by
shareholders of the Company in general
meeting revoking or varying the approval
and authority given to the Directors by
this resolution (note (2)).”

(C) "THAT
(a) a general mandate be and is hereby

unconditionally given to the Directors to exercise
all the powers of the Company during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) to issue,



Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

DERAFZRG (BEZ
BREAMHAIAEREE
HERHEREZRE - HE
FEARBKREMAL TR
ABRT BRBIBEEZR
7)) - ERE T 5 E BRI

(i) MEECZBHER
BEBAEEFR
PEERHD  HES
SERBREBRROA
REBRNE B UM
B itEIEARA
EERHBIARERS
e EMITHAZME
ARFREEMEH
RAEVEIAETERN
BETRRERFE
ZREASELEEMR
Bo=®

(i) AR TR VIS HE R
BEZEAELEIRET
BHEULH R

(iii) & 2 B E [ R R #EF
Bt B = 3R B R AT R B
FrEfTzrADaR
L -

(iv) READT 22 A48
METZEMURRLS
AREREBZH -

(b) BT EBEBIEE 2B T
BARBESASEBARAQT
REARZEEBRHESHT
BRABEEZ20%; &

RRBEBFREESR

(b)

allot and dispose of shares in the capital of the
Company (including making and granting offers,
agreements and options which would or which
might require shares to be issued, allotted or
disposed of, whether during the continuance of
such mandate or thereafter), otherwise than
pursuant to:

(i) a rights issue where shares are offered to
shareholders on a fixed record date in
proportion fo their then holdings of shares
(subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard,
as appropriate, to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory
body or stock exchange in, or in any
territory outside, Hong Kong]); or

(i) any share option scheme or similar
arrangement established by the Company
and approved by the Stock Exchange; or

(iii) any issue of shares in the Company upon
the exercise of subscription rights
attaching to any warrants of the
Company; or

(iv) any scrip dividend scheme or similar
arrangement implemented in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company.

the aggregate nominal value of the share capital
issued, allotted or disposed of shall not in aggregate
exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate nominal value
of the share capital of the Company in issue at the
date of this resolution; and
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued

(c)

(D)

BAREREMS - [BEHBINE
HARBRBEBZHETIHRLE
(ABEERE) 28

(iy A2ATERREFKE
ERE W

ARAZLAAAREN
EREGREADARAE
TTERREFAEHR
EwmzB =&

(if)

(i ADARRERRRE L
BBEBABRAERB
ARBRMARTES
SR HIZBEH (HFEF@2)R
(4); 1&

[B)3& @ REE4(B)RFE4(C)HER
ZREGBEBZGHT  KE
EERERUMBELC)RRE
ROEARAQXAEDUEER D
ZBREBEXR BESEK
BZ-—MREETRZIERM
FEGAEBEER Z2RAEE
BE - BRADAREE4(B)
FRBRERELIMBEZAR
DEARAEELETAEM
ELUBEFAESEAEAQIIRAE
REZBBHBZERHTRA
HEAE210% ° |

RESE®
RAWE
gEn

ZZ-F5+tAMNH

(&)

(c)

(D)

for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant Period”
means the period from the passing of this resolution
until whichever is the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company; or

(ii) the expiry of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the Bye-laws of the Company or
any applicable law to be held; or

(iii) the passing of an ordinary resolution by

shareholders of the Company in general meeting

revoking or varying the approval and authority
given to the Directors by this resolution (Notes

(2) and (4));" and

“THAT conditional upon the resolutions numbered 4(B)
and 4(C) being passed, the general mandate granted to
the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company fo
allot shares pursuant to resolution numbered 4(C) be and
is hereby extended by the addition to the aggregate
nominal value of the share capital which may be allotted
or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
by the Directors pursuant to such general mandate as
amount representing the aggregate nominal value of the
share capital of the Company purchased by the Company
under the authority granted pursuant fo resolution numbered
4(B), provided that such amount shall not exceed 10 per
cent. of the aggregate nominal value of the share capital
of the Company in issue at the date of this resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Lo Chi Chung, William
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 4th July, 2001
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(1)

(2)

(4)

LRERHELABSEEMZAEER
ELREZRIRUEREZR-BEAR
HERRERBERERE - ZENAR
BEARARARR KREERBE
AEHEBECEEERALHLOBAES
FRACAGMREEIAREXHE X
PERAREREANESEEAHE
MOt NAPNEAXERDI Z2EBR
NEFELERETXERBAERA
B it AEBTHEERIIIK KR
LA FREN -

EREARRBRZHARFBTFRR
RERKEZE G EMAL

ARAABER=_ZZTE-FNA=-F+NAE

“TEE-ENA=+-HLE(BEEWMX
BEER)EENERNBEETL -MA
ROBPXHEREERE  HERZ
ZE-FENAZTLtETHFNBHER
AABZEBROBFELENED X
BEERLQIT Ut BEBTHEEFR111
EKEZHOLARE o

MR ELMELC)E ESHRERRE
BESRBLEAREFE T 2R IET
ERHFBRAD -

H)’L

REFT KREEE

Notes:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened
by the above nofice is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and,
in the event of a poll, vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a
member of the Company. In order to be valid, the form of proxy
must be deposited at the Company’s share registrars in Hong
Kong at Secretaries Limited, 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong together with any power
of attorney or other authority under which it is signed or a
notarially certified copy of that power or authority, not less than
48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned

meeting.

An Explanatory Statement in relation to resolution numbered 4 will

be sent to shareholders and other persons who are entitled thereto.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
28th August, 2001 to 31st August, 2001, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong,
Secretaries Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:00
p.m. on 27th August, 2001.

Concerning resolution numbered 4(C) above, the Directors wish
to state that they have no immediate plans to issue any additional
new shares of the Company pursuant fo the power to be conferred
by this mandate.

ll‘a )

=39
g
S

I

-

Annual Report 2001



| L&fﬁsg_g* i
Chairman’s Statement






10

E R EH
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BUSINESS REVIEW

- KO
22T /- YBEEHAREMmE
+HBEN—F o

2

mu%

T FE EEHNAH1,612,622,0008
T EH147% BAEBEBBEBL S
272,699,000 Tt - EF R E K L&
mMEEMNEENA226,068,000/8

T FBERLEMEENEEER
# 546,631,000 T HhBELEE
MEBEBYAE17,778,0008 T - B %
BREEMELENEAERE  TER
RE=Z (- EEEBEREAHEW
BEEK ATEREWKRELSR
% 4 5 95,145,000 &t ; (=) B &
BEREGREBEEMBEENHEE
BE, (Z)BEENEBANBEHERA

EFEHERLAMBEBAE
h o EBEFEHEREEEHFERH
BEAERREBHER  HREE
EENNBEREBRER -
SEEEECER-RIREMA
BRWER BEXBEE - B E
BRERBEREBEHRRB  LHSEAX
Eg

The financial year 2000/01 is a very difficult year to the
Group.

Turnover of the year increased by 14.7% to approximately
HK$1.6 billion. Loss before taxation was approximately
HK$272.7 million, where loss arising from direct business
operations was approximately HK$226.1 million and loss from
indirect business operations approximately HK$46.6 million,
including loss on disposal of a property amounted to
approximately HK$17.8 million. There are three principal
reasons for the substantial loss arising from direct business
operations: (a) a special provision of approximately HK$95.1
million made for pagers inventory and accounts receivable in
view of the management’s decision to phase out the pagers
business; (b) trading loss arising from sales of excessive and
slow-moving inventory; and (c] gross margin throughout the
year was under severe pressure of the surge of electronic
component prices. The component shortage also undermined
the Group's profitability and operational efficiency because of
insufficient order allocation and delivery delays.

The management has taken a series of timely and effective
measures to consolidate the business scope, review the business
strategies and rationalize the organization with a view to
improve financial performance.

BmBHEBESRZERBIN
Analysis of Turnover by Geogrophlcal Market

% # Hong Kong 7.6%

H 1 Others 1.0%

HMEMmE
Other Asian markets 37.2%

ik =M
North America 7.4%

B Europe 1.7%

F &  Middle East 3.5%

TE BRI
The People’s Republic of Ching,
other than Hong Kong 41.6%
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Restructuring to reduce operating overhead

SEEREEBEZNERAEEE-%RJ
EBEANERE  UDETHEBERRR
BEEMX  FTENBRBE -

o FRM REEME R B (SBUs)MME &
BENEREEREMEHK

s BHEXENPEZERBEESH
AERBEAMNO 2 A F

s PEHMMNBEHAEABIHE  RIERLE
BENFEROVRE - UHE25% 8
THX

s EERAAMEEREBRRF10%E
20%

s WE-LIBREE  PIUERER
RENEFZEME

s HE-LEAMAX

DERERHEMERKRINEET EEH

EE O TUHETBUNNEALEEMR

x EEEMRFE UNBAMNEXEREM

CEERBNRABEZEBANS -

il

ERER  MBEWEERE

Over the past nine months, the management had implemented a
series of restructuring measures fo respond to the market situation
and to save operating expense. The principal measures include:

e Formation of strategic business units (SBUs) to improve
operational efficiency and management accountability

e Closure of the USA office and several non-profitable branch
offices in Mainland China

* A company-wide rationalisation programme and cessation
of certain loss-making non-core business to save 25% of
staff overhead

e Directors and senior management voluntarily reduced their
remuneration packages by 10% - 20%

e Disposal of certain non-critical assets, such as a surplus
office property

o Deferment of certain capital expenditure

These and other measures have successfully streamlined the
operation of the Group and led to a saving of monthly overhead
up to 35%. The management believes the slimmer organization
now is optimal for the Group's current business volume.

Inventory reduction and stringent credit control

SEEAEEEX  MRBEALEAR
BXHBEBRBEEEFEE - I nEEHEWRK
EHNE®E KWEHERERFEE - 915K
BRHE EFREWERB XL
B M 5 B K £ 92 B B 8
399,350,000 ;t & #327,101,000
BITTREHNBREERNEREK
o Rl B #%289,724,0008 Tt K Y
185,623,000 T o

EEERAULNEEREER L
FmMAXRN EEAEZIEERR
MEEBBREXZENRSE -

As part of the business consolidation exercise, the management
has been striving to reduce inventory level and to impose
stringent credit control in the past nine months. So far the
result is noticeable, inventory level and accounts receivable
level dropped from approximately HK$399.4 million and
approximately HK$327.1 million respectively at the time of
interim result announcement to approximately HK$289.7 million
and approximately HK$185.6 million respectively at end of
financial year.

The management considers this business consolidation measure
is necessary and has been effectively carried out, albeit the
Group's short term financial performance could be adversely
affected by drop in sales turnover and trading loss arising
from sales below cost.

THEHRETE @
Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

e BMEBEUAR  KEBHBEMN
MERBRE  KREEREWR
EREEZERRBREKTN  EBER
TEECRERBRERNARIERD
EEMBUTH BEMRFE
X - E B R Y B £ 8B
125,339,000 % T °

EEE-HESEENEIRBIRERE
MEFBR BMRBRTITEEEXE -

The Group's financial position has improved significantly since
its interim position as at 30th September 2000. Besides
inventory and accounts receivable were reduced to healthier
levels, total bank borrowings also went down as a result of
cost saving and improved working capital. Cash on hand as
at end of the financial year amounted to approximately

HK$125.3 million.

The management maintains a very close working relationship
with the Group's bankers to ensure their continuing support.

Pagers business to phase out

KEEBEFRXH
WMTXEBAMELREREAMEMNE
2 MmBEAFEESBLEREN AR
MRBAHNAIE - WPREH QD
ARMEEEEBELAEEARNEE
> YA ERDMEDTSESE > BE
EmHLEE TMEETFTRAEE
mEE -

IR

EEECRANEANMBAREY
KEBEHNITE  FLEEERNF
BEMETRERERERF SERLE
EBERBREBRMESERHAIER -
HEAKEIHESHENREEM
EEEWHREE -

ARARAEHEIEREXE  TEEEAEX

BBREERELBEINREE K7
ErEWERREZTE2 R EE -
EBEBBHNAI145,0008 T -
EEEEBFBEBHNAHI1,268,0008
T S EFIHREENAEBEENS
186,413,0003% T o

The pagers industry is undergoing a fundamental change such
that the market is no longer viable for companies whose
expertise is product innovation and design. Smaller players
that have higher degree of flexibility in pricing and quicker
response time to market changes are obviously in an
advantageous position. Customers put price concern before
anything else.

The management has revised its pagers business strategy nine
months ago to stop all R&D work for low-end pager products
but to concentrate management resources to clear inventory.
The Group is now actively seeking potential strategic business
partners or buyers to take up the business of the high-end
financial broadcasting pagers.

In response to the corporate decision to phase out the business,
the management had made a special provision at the end of the
financial year under review to write down the value of inventory
and accounts receivable to their net realizable value. This special
provision amounted to approximately HK$95.1 million, together
with the loss arising from trading operation amounted to
approximately HK$91.3 million, gave rise to a total loss for the
pager business in the amount of approximately HK$186.4 million.

Electronic Dictionaries

EfH Y
EFRABANKEBNEAERE 1
MHETS FEARBEFHABRAN

B (30%) 0 MAGEBENERES
LE(BEFERAR) HNNAT% E6

This SBU is still the largest turnover contributor to the Group.
In geographical terms, Mainland China is the largest single
market (30%) while the aggregate for the Greater China region
(including Hong Kong and Taiwan) is around 70%. It is believed



Chairman’s Statement (continued)

HME FEAENTEEREICRRS
MEZR UEBANTEEREEERN
BEmERERER SESEERNE
ATEERR BEEFETHRFEEER
REATROBEHHEREHTS &
BHRE BEABLEBESRE -

BHzstEE ((ODM])

that the market growth potential of Mainland China is also the
largest among all. The Group will continue to expand its market
share by leveraging its strong marketing and sales network
and branding. Profit margin is expected to improve as
component cost resumes to a more reasonable level and new
products’ launch to the market.

Original Design Manufacturing (“ODM”)

EFTEHERYODMBAEELE R
X ERTRERXRERKBREAEE
BREEZEBENBARTEEENRR - EB
CmEEMRTE  ODMEXN W EBKE A
BHELREZLAHR  EFEHX
EERETREABUERDFFREN
BE Z2RANBEREEMAE MR
EHRMRIME-DRE -

EEECFAMRS T ODMEHK MK
B YERDRABENERBRAA
HATEYNEBBRER  MEKA
BMEBERERARE -Z—FHEH  &H
NAEHREELEEBPINEEN
#® URESEBRAE -

EEERREEFEHAERMELENSE
Mg SEREERTENZAAIZE
2 SODMEFHERZ  MBTHEHE
WiED ZERB ERAKERIRFE
B2 ORARREBNBRELREBER -

EEEBEFELODMSBUNEBI B REBE RS

BHREFE(ZZ2-/Z22)4%  #KF
Freg & »

B A S E 32 ([PDA])

ODM division has been a victim of the component shortage
problems. The chaotic price and delivery situation directly led
to gross margin erosion and drop in operational efficiency.
Unlike own-branded products, margins of ODM contracts are
particularly vulnerable to factors like those. Delivery delays of
components inevitably resulted in shipment delays to customers
where profit margins again were damaged because of increased
freight cost or contractual penalty.

The management has reviewed the ODM business strategies
carefully and has taken appropriate measures to ensure that
all new orders are to be critically evaluated and profit margins
are to be sufficiently protected. Besides, we are taking steps to
further improve production efficiency in order to improve profit
margin.

The Group’s ability to maintain product quality and order
fulfillment despite the difficulties created by component shortage
has helped to enhance customer confidence. This is certainly
building up a goodwill among the ODM customers which is a
valuable asset to the ODM SBU.

The management is confident that the financial performance of

the ODM division will be improved in the current financial

year.

PDAs

EECH EPDAMEA AR ENRBMEE
B -EUER PDAC—RELRAEEMA
BEBEUBEAENEEATINRERE &
BERBEABRBEEREREANTBDEE
B TR - £ R iH AT E MR
GSMPDAE MBEIBRIA AT AFHEH » B

The Group has chosen PDA as its strategic focus in the coming
years. It is becoming an undisputable fact that PDA will be
emerging from a pocket-sized machine mainly for personal
information management to a mobile data communication device
that is good for keeping people connected and information
retrieval. The Group's state-of-the-art GSM PDA has successfully
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BRtAELTE - B E PDAR B GSMIE
HoMmMEEBER -8B SPDARGREHE/ID
RENBRE2H XHEABTFREMHEER
BEADE WEFEH4 BEH FEE
EREM(SMS)E - EEPDAR B K@ &
FREE RET2EE SAHE BAH
EEABBAIDENPDAERERERE
EBHNIEEERZY] IHAEEMNE
Z WA RIR o B F R B & % (m-Commerce)
MEER SEEURDEEBRAAEEN
EMEIABEREERAL NRER
Z RIT VHREERLEBRIRL
BPE-EABAEENAE -

ru'ﬁ

—EE-FRA SHAEXBUEREELZ B
#Z Intel Capital Corporation * SB China Holdings
Pte Limited (¥ & £ B ¥ 2 7 )& UTStarcom,
nc, EEBERKRENZ OB FAH
[EEPDAER ERARAIRBAEE L
BR-=BAAGHRRE-—TER+ES
T UWBEZ D B 16%M KR E o Bt [E
B » &% PDAY A 7 1 £ Intel Semiconductor
Limited ER G EHE > ERMREmB R
IHREE - EBEMRE ULOFBM
REETEREERTRHFES AR
BERMENEMREERSE -

n's Statement (continued)

passed the test for international type approval and is scheduled
for launch in July. The seamlessly built-in GSM module allows
the PDA to retain its compact and handy size but offers to
customers the various wireless functions like e-mail, fax, voice
phone and short messages (SMS) communications. The initial
pre-launch feedback is very positive and encouraging. It is
envisaged that communication-enabled PDA products will grow
as the flagship product series of the Group and hence a major
income contributor. With the imminent taking-off of m-
Commerce, these mobile-data-centric digital devices will be
playing a critical role in enabling professional applications
like stock trading, banking, logistics management and enterprise
solutions.

In May 2001, the Group completed a deal with three strategic
investors namely Intel Capital Corporation, SB China Holdings
Pte Limited (a Softbank subsidiary) and UTStarcom, Inc. for a
Series A Preferred Shares placement in the Group's subsidiary
company Group Sense PDA Holdings Limited. The investors
took a stake of 16% at a consideration of US$10.5 million. At
the same time of the investment, the PDA subsidiary also entered
into a collaboration agreement with Intel Semiconductor Limited
for technology and product development co-operation. The
management believes that these strategic investors bring to the
Group not only new capital but also the much needed
technology and business networking.

REIBXBIBZEREDIM
Analysis of Turnover by Principal Activity

ETRH
Electronic Dictionaries 33.3%

H iy
Others 1.6%

EWRER
Pager products 22.2%

BEHRFTEE
Original Design Manufacturing 26.6%

8 A B15 By 2
Personal Digital Assistants 16.3%
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The Directors believe the business consolidation exercise would
be finished in the first half-year of the current financial year
(2001/02). Sales turnover in second half will see significant
growth following the launch of new products. The component
shortage problems that had badly stricken the Group during
the financial year 2000/01 has almost fully recovered. Most
of the inventory that had come in at high cost will be consumed
in the first six months. After that, the cheaper component cost
will start to benefit the profit margin in the second half.

The slow-down of the U.S. economy might to some extent also
affect the Mainland China market but the impact will be
compensated by China’s WTO entry and the exuberant growth
in consumer spending. Hong Kong and Taiwan markets are
expected to remain soft until at least mid-2002 whilst Japan
and Southeast Asia markets will have stable growth. On the
other hand, interest rate cuts would definitely help improving
profitability.

With the support from shareholders, employees, business
associates and bankers, the Directors are maintaining a
cautiously optimistic view that the financial results of the Group
could be turn-around towards the end of the financial year.

B E DIVIDEND

EEegE T RBEEBE-_ZZ—F The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
ZTAZtT-HLEFEZRHRE (= in respect of the year ended 31st March, 2001 (2000: HKO0.5
ZEZTF 058 - cent).

5 &

APPRECIATION

FABERREZSERHFRR-EMU
REAEE2XF XHHMBEET
RBE-FZ2FHIEREMRERT
ELOHE BEINMBEERAREE
EBEASURINEZRZE -

REEE®
FE
HER

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to thank our
shareholders for their continuing support to the Group and to
extend my appreciation to all members of staff for their
dedication and contribution throughout the year. Employee
commitment has been a critical element in making the
restructuring plans possible.

By order of the Board
Tam Wai Ho, Samson

Chairman

Hong Kong, 4th July, 2001
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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wE OVERVIEW
ETERNERBRBEE_Z2%/ The business environment for electronic products had seen many
E-BHREEHRT AL A unfavourable factors during the financial year under review.
ZE - ARZEERETITZHNDS Because of the extraordinarily high demand for several critical
FRRABAA  HEZEER electronic components, the supply became very tight and precious.
LHEEHRMEER  mMERHE The immediate result of a supply shortage was insufficient
mEMR - HEHEERSES O allocation and price increases. At the peak of this shortage
BREEFEHMIHNEBRLAREE situation, the prices of certain critical components have increased
150% - HAEEEBCRE N BEE L by as much as 150%. Despite the effort of the management to
EHEENTE  BEREIANBIRE minimize the adverse impact on the operation, profit margin and
ERREATREZZIHSE - production efficiency had been inevitably affected.
ERRTSEBE-—FEET — @ The pagers market has gone through a vigorous consolidation
TOHZANEEBRE - BEDSH & process during the past year. The low-end market segment
KR-—EELNEEAEEREZNE M became a commodity market where price is the primary deciding
mE N BELEEBERTEBYKRIE factor of customers. Retail prices of pagers were severely undercut
18 HE SEEEFPREHELEED by small manufacturers and traders. The Group decided to exit
5 AU EAE  ERERAKKRE the low-end market during the middle of the year and tried very
HEFE  URBERBEEBNEFER - hard to clear the slow-moving inventory by selling at cost or
HRAEBERESEDTEN DS A even below cost. Although the high-end market is still viable in
EXZRBAMETA  BEEESC terms of market share and profitability, the management has
REXKBETHREE - 222 )/ decided to phase out the entire pagers business. A special
E-FENXED BRAEFEERE provision was made in the accounts to write down the value of

WERFEHBSHRER -

BREAMEBNS  EBTEEBE—FN
RBEUBEEAE BEHEMNEEEH
- hh A,/ ZZEEZEEEENY
268,604,000 T T R ZEF MW Y
123,333,00058 7T * B 18 X 54% B £ —
FCoEBENEF-RFITEZEEHER
FIREmAE S &E ] ET /%5.%’3_)52
— % % 12,064,000/8 TH Z B o

EE-ZTT /T-FENEEEARD
1,612,622,0008 T ' Lk H AT FE M D
1,405,942,0008 T » B R14.7% ; BRRE
R B8 4270,1390008 5 » TEEFEAM
BEBBFANEEFBRBEFHEKIBM
FRER S B Hal B e

EEREEBECEKERBM R EKEMA
B O UERBEEEXE®E HIRER
A

| R B o

inventory and accounts receivable at the year end.

Besides the above two reasons, the Hong Kong market
significantly under-performed during the year. Sales in
Hong Kong dropped by approximately 54% from
HK$268.6 million to HK$123.3 million as compared to
the prior year. During the year, one of the Group’s major
retail chain customers, namely Tokyo Toys Trading Group,
went into liquidation and caused a bad debt of
approximately HK$12.1 million to the Group.

The Group recorded turnover growth of 14.7% from
HK$1,405.9 million to HK$1,612.6 million for the
financial year 2000/01. Loss attributable to shareholders
is HK$270.1 million, which is a result of operating losses
from two business divisions and specific provision made
for the pagers division.

The management has carried out a series of restructuring
exercises to consolidate the business and to strive for a turn-
around.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

EE2FHEX%41,612,622,000%8 T 2
o BEETEE (33.3%) 0 EHERE
4 7= (26.6%) & 18 A S5 By 22 ([ PDA] —
16.3%) » —HEHFELE XK HHT76.2%
(B0 %91,228,193,0005% 7t) - H e B 3k
BERKSYE ¥ £ 54 384,429,000% T
(23.8%) * BIEE W (22.2%) Rx &
MEBER(1.6%) - k- hh /=

ZEEHFE RETFHREBEXEETR the above business divisions recorded growth in turnover e
171% 29 LEREXRBNE XEY during the year, except the pager division which recorded |
BEEE o a drop of 17.1%. L
"
SEERTHEREETFHERLIS - B Besides pagers business that is to be phased out, another o
AEEHRHTELELEREK - business division that is also in the course of discontinuation is :
FENEBNERISFARRE » UK rechargeable battery products. This small business division was 19’
HARRENKBLARABHES F set up about five years ago and is operated under a 60% .
ER2AI(BHDEEF)EE HE subsidiary company namely Max Power Electronics Limited
EXBREERFERTERENES (“Max Power”). The principal business of Max Power is =
WER mHEAEBS HPHEHAER manufacture and sales of different types of rechargeable battery P
B - BHRIREEER [BHES products in Hong Kong, Mainland China and overseas. lts g
FINEXBRUEITFRMARELEAZE business turnover was previously grouped under electronic Eg :
ELEMMNEFTBHARMAZT - B dictionary division, which was a user of the battery products, £ :

EEEZRLESEHREIDEE 7 |
MARBRETFEORBRENSER
B oo

SE-BHEARW  REIFELEEX
ENEXRBEY SEHAEA-A-
FREEERBABE —XEXER
Z  LEBREESEENATARE
mmiE e BEEENTSENER
EREAERABERERTEHR
X EBEECRARERE-ZEZE/Z
—FERZFERRIUDFLEHEE
B AUEMEBENEREERRR
XFEHMETSEEREEED -

=

UE=ZEBFELCEERIRBRLER
B EHHREBNLEEEBRAY
186,413,000/ T » B # & & # 91,268,000
BTHEESFE RAGEREWERAH

Among the total turnover of HK$1,612.6 million,
HK$1,228.2 million, i.e. around 76.2% was contributed
by three continuing business operations, namely electronic
dictionaries (33.3%), ODM products (26.6%) and personal
digital assistants (“PDAs” - 16.3%). The remaining
HK$384.4 million, i.e. around 23.8%, was derived from

two discontinuing business operations, namely pagers

(22.2%) and rechargeable battery products (1.6%). All of

due to its immaterial amount. The management is considering
to sell the Group’s 60% interest in Max Power to the joint
venture partner who holds the minority 40% shareholding.

Another discontinuing operation that generated no business
turnover is the football team. The Group has been managing a
professional football team in Hong Kong since 1991 for the
purpose of promoting the Group's corporate logo and product
trademarks. With the shift of the Group’s market focus to
Mainland China and the continual loss of local football
audiences, the management has decided to terminate the
sponsorship immediately after the end of the 2000/01 football
season. The advertising budget that becomes available will be
applied to other means of marketing and promotion activities.

All the three discontinuing operations generated operating
loss. Pager division generated an operating loss of
HK$186.4 million, which includes trading loss of HK$91.3

million and special write-down of inventory and accounts
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Manogement Dlscu55|on & Analysis (continued)

receivable of HK$95.1 million. The operating loss for
Max Power and football team is HK$8.0 million and
HK$9.4 million respectively.

Among the three continuing operations, electronic dictionaries
and PDAs made operating profit of HK$5.3 million and HK$
7.4 million respectively. ODM business, on the other hand,
made a loss of HK$35.0 million. The combined losses or profit
arising from continuing and discontinuing business operations
gave rise to a net total loss of HK$226.1 million, of which
82.4% came from pagers business division.

The Group also suffered a total loss of HK$46.6 million arising
from indirect business operations. Two major items in this
category are loss on disposal of leasehold properties amounted
to HK$17.8 million and interest expenses amounted to HK$12.9
million. Other items, including certain losses related to
subsidiaries and associated companies and provision for
impairment in value of investment securities, accounted for the
remainder loss of HK$15.9 million. The loss arising from the
liquidation of Chinese Books Cyberstore Limited, an internet
bookstore in which the Group has held approximately 7.4%
interest, amounted to HK$2.7 million is part of the investment-
related losses.

Loss before taxation, which is an aggregate of losses
from direct operations of HK$226.1 million and indirect
operations of HK$46.6 million, amounted to HK$272.7
million. The directors do not recommend the payment of

a final dividend.

ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS SHORTAGE

M-—ZTL /T-FETHEEML
%%gﬁﬂﬁkmlﬁ%t?iﬂﬁ’% MWE
BER RHEFRBEASKEITELE
(SRR Hﬂiﬁ‘iﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ}égﬁﬂﬁmii?ﬁ
25l ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/}lbﬁﬂ@%%éﬁﬂuﬁﬁ%
HEEMPIWMIHEREE  R¥
BERIXEEFTEHSERE{ H=
ZEEFYHAR BEDEERZFS
(Mask ROM) > R B (F R 2R AHEE
Bflashmemory) R A R BE TR 2B

As highlighted in the 2000/01 interim financial report, the
shortage was a direct result of too many buyers chasing after
too few supplies. The sales forecasts of major mobile phone
and personal computer manufacturers have driven the demand
of critical components to a new height. The increasingly popular
electronic devices such as digital cameras, MP3 players, etc.
and the general under-capacity of the semiconductor industry
aggravated the situation. Starting from early 2000, the supply
of Mask ROM, memory chips (especially flash memory) and
LCD drivers became very scarce and prices surged significantly.
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Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)

The prices of Mask ROM and flash memory, the two categories
of components of which the Group has very large consumption,
went up by as much as 112% and 84% respectively at around
middle of year 2000, i.e. the Group's second financial quarter,
and stayed on high levels until the first few months in year
2001, i.e. the Group's last financial quarter.

The high prices directly hurt the Group’s gross margin in all
business divisions, as these components are critical to almost
all of the products. The shortage also brought several indirect
impacts to the Group’s business operation such as order
cancellations, shipment delays and unsatisfactory production
efficiency.

The price trends have been going down since the beginning of
the current financial year (2001/02) and are expected to
resume to more reasonable and sustainable levels throughout
the year. With average purchase and production lead times of
around eight to ten weeks, it is envisaged that the drop in
component cost will start to benefit the Group in the second to

third financial quarter of 2001/02.

Over the past year, the management has taken different
measures, such as additional purchasing personnel, expansion
of vendor list, more intensive supplier relationship management,
etc., to enhance the Group's procurement capability in
bargaining and market projection. Given the component market
is now turning to be more favourable to buyers, it is envisaged
that the shortage problems that had badly stricken the Group
would be substantially recovered.

ESTABLISHMENT OF STRATEGIC BUSINESS
UNITS (“SBU")

FEEEMPANEBLEREERERES
ETE EEERBUNEZIEZEXZHES®
B BEEEIANERBEXRBEN
(SBU) » 2Rl REFHHE KEMHER
(RHRAEE/ RUERBEE) - PDA
FEF#H -ESBUH-—ESREEAER
B HTEHEMERAE KB -
SHEBRBEENTHRAE KRELEX
BEERTEN ZSBUFEEEZBN

In view of the distinctive business nature and operating
environment of the business divisions, the management has
divided the Group into four SBUs according to the four major
business lines, namely Electronic Dictionary, Strategic Product
(ODM/OEM), PDA and Pager. Each SBU is headed by a
member of the senior management team and comprises of
R&D, purchasing, marketing and sales and administrative staff.
The SBUs are given the responsibility to achieve sales targets
and forecast, manage their own income statements and balance
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sheets and attend to SBU’s customer relationship management.
The corporate headquarters retains only the general supporting
functions, i.e. general management, manufacturing and logistics,
such as human resources, accounting and information
technology services.

The SBU setup process started last November and was
completed at the end of the financial year when the headcount
and computer database were properly split among the units
and the office premises re-arranged to this effect. The SBUs
are charged with high degree of autonomy and hence quicker
decision making and better staff commitment. Notwithstanding
that, there are regular meetings among the SBUs to ensure the
alignment of corporate objectives and a centralized coordinated
effort to safeguard the commercial benefits arising from
concerted actions, e.g. large volume purchase discount.

The management is confident that operational efficiency and
management accountability of the Group could be much
enhanced as a result.

£ F & # SBU ELECTRONIC DICTIONARY SBU

g F B Hﬂ E S O % | AN The turnover of electronic dictionaries business grew by 11.2%
536,626,0008 T - & 1§ 1 % X E to HK$536.6 million. The major thrust of the growth came
#E B N §|E BEHREAED B from the Mainland China market that contributed approximately

30% of total electronic dictionaries business. Chinese language-
based products are still the largest single income contributor,
over 70%, among all. During the year, there were several new
products launched in the marketplace, such as Longman 7000
Talking Dictionary, LD7700 Real Voice Talking Dictionary,
MD3200 Slim Talking Dictionary, EC2100 Pocket-sized
Dictionary, etc. All these models are of mid-range to low-end
the retail prices of which are in the range of RMB 300 to RMB
1,200. These new products perfectly fit into the Group's
strategic plan to offer more products in the middle to lower
range to enlarge the Group’s market share in that sector. The
high-end market segment, on the other hand, has not been

ST 0 5 A MDISOE B & neglected. A new model, MD9250, featuring double IC card
B E BB (IC Card)Z & 51 % b expansion capability was introduced close to the end of the
B TERVMHREEREHTS o financial year.

MABRE PEAENE FERMBE Market potential in Mainland China for electronic dictionary

mMEENEE  BER®E BE

products is undoubtedly huge and yet to exploit. The demand
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The Group’s electronic dictionaries are very popular in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Overseas.
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for this kind of devices is expected to go up further because of
increase in consumer spending and the genuine need for good
language learning aids in light of the fast growing economic
development. The Group will continve to leverage its strong
marketing channels and branding in the Greater China region
to expand the market share.

The SBU re-entered the marketplaces in South Korea and
Malaysia during the year. These two markets, and also a few
others, had been severely stricken by the Asian financial crisis
two to three years ago and the Group's customers (importers
of the products) in these countries had gone into financial
difficulties. The SBU had spent considerable effort over the
past two years in identifying new customers and developing
new products for these markets. European and Middle East
markets were relatively stable but profit margin had been
inevitably squeezed because of rise in component cost.

The SBU made a small operating profit of HK$5.3 million
during the year. A bad debt in the amount of HK$12.1 million
written off against Tokyo Toys Trading Group is one of the
contributing factors for such an unsatisfactory performance. It
is envisaged that ease of component cost pressure and launch

of new products will improve the result in financial year 2001/
02.
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STRATEGIC PRODUCT (ODM/OEM] SBU

Turnover of ODM/OEM division increased by almost 90% to
HK$428.5 million during the financial year. Many new projects

from various Japanese customers including products like
handheld e-mail devices, electronic dictionaries, digital voice
recorders and portable electronic health care products
contributed to increase in turnover. In addition to business
with Japanese customers, towards the end of the financial year,
the SBU was awarded a contract for development of multimedia
mobile products by one of the leading companies in that field.
It is becoming apparent that many world-class corporations
are anxious to appoint capable ODM contractors overseas to
take up, not only the manufacturing, but also new product
development from them in the interest of cost and speed. The
Group is in an advantageous position to gain a stronghold in
this sector because of its abundant experience and good
references provided by existing esteemed customers.

The SBU suffered an operating loss during the year mainly due
to the component shortage that led to cost and delivery
problems. The SBU has implemented a series of measures, e.g.
consignment of material by customers, profit margin protection
provisions in agreements, material cost locked-in at time of
order, efc., to ensure that the business would not be subject to
similar adverse impact again in future. Besides, the SBU has
strengthened its procurement and production capabilities over
the last nine months in order to have the most competitive cost
of production. One of the prominent achievements is the sefting
up of ACF assembly facility for LCD modules. By doing this
process in-house, the SBU could improve substantially in terms
of cost and quality. This advanced production facility also
allows the SBU to stand out from the other ODM contractors in
this region.

With the formation of SBU, the different functions, i.e.
R&D, purchasing, manufacturing and marketing are
working closely ever than before. Task forces comprise of
different talents based on customers’ requirement are set
up to work with customers throughout the development
processes. While trade secrets of customers are being
discreetly preserved, knowledge and experience are
shared among the teams to enhance staff learning and
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SEREMARRTRHRTEERT A ANGEECEE -
High quality products have earned the Group good
reputation among ODM customers.

operational efficiency. Whenever there is a need, the
SBU will also work with external partners to fulfill customer
expectations and to attain best results.

It is the SBU's plan to expand its customer base beyond existing
Japanese customers. However, the SBU management will take a
very cautious approach in the process such that the Group would
not take up a too wide exposure. Moreover, the management will
also try to manage the growth of business turnover by concentrating
on high quality business. With the Group's expertise in wireless
communications is proven, it is expected that the SBU will be more
involved in wireless handheld products in the years ahead.

PDA SBU

EEE-_ZETEFPEARPEDSFED
HE=ZRKPDAER KABKRIXTAER
&T o # XploreZ& %I PDAS £ F & 1% 1t 59
WX R %E R K (Open OS: Elopen
operating system) * AILL B HBEAE R T &
ERAEY RITmHEERML HEERF
RAXEEEREBREIR (ATEREE
MEBRAR) MEHEETTHEMPF
BHAIIE  SXploreERERZEE
EmPHEML - BHEZESH BHE—
BotRERBHAIHERETSH - &
STHELESHELSN  EEEARMGE
ERZRE DA ETFER (NHH
EE CBHAIAR) BRE(WER)RE
A(MREMMERBIEER) o

The Group launched its third generation PDA product
featuring open platform architecture in the Greater China
market around mid-2000. The Xplore series PDA quickly hit
the market by offering the users an open OS (operating
system) that permits development and downloads of
application software. The stylish design and large size LCD
(the largest in the market) together with the unrivalled Chinese
characters handwriting recognition made the Xplore products
stand out distinctively from the rest. As of today, there are a
total of 120 application software made available to users
for downloading and many more are expected to come up
soon. These applications are mainly divided into three
categories, namely productivity (e.g. financial management,
communication utilities, efc.), entertainment (e.g. games) and
information (e.g. flight and hotel information).
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SEH— 2z PDAERBH RS T PDA REFBARE -
WEHH GSM PDA REIZ IS @& PDA -

The Group’s next-generation PDAs seamlessly combine
PDA functions and wireless communications — GSM
PDA (right) and Two-way pager PDA (left).
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Dlscu55|on & Analysis (continued)

After the first model Xplore 5000, several other new models,
including a pager PDA, have been launched during the past
year. Product features and price points of these products are
not the same but all of them are running on the same open
OS. Hence user data and applications are conveniently
compatible and transferable. The management believes that
the beauty of open OS is not only in data format and software
download but is also in making the development of vertical
applications (e.g. enterprise solutions) much easier and quicker.
According to predictions by industrial analysts, the market
potential of the vertical segment is much bigger than that of
the horizontal segment. The SBU is in the course of building up
a dedicated team of professionals to tap into this lucrative
market segment.

The Group’s GSM PDA is scheduled to be launched in
July 2001 in the Mainland China market. This all-new
PDA with embedded GSM module will be the first one of
this type running on an open OS and be offered at a
very affordable price. The SBU is now working intensively
with several vertical market partners on making use the
GSM PDA as a platform for m-Commerce applications,
such as securities trading, banking, entertainment, booking
and reservation, on-line information enquiries, etc. Other
applications include e-mail, fax, voice phone and short
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Management Discussion & Ano|y5|s (continued)
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HATERESRBRINEZRER ¥ PDAs would allow easy adaptation to new wireless chips ED
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WRZZZF—-HF A B  Intel Capital
Corporation, SB China Holdings Pte Limited
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messages (SMS) communications. According to research
institutions, global SMS communication volume has been
growing at a shocking rate, from 15 billion in December
2000 to probably over 40 billion in December 2001. The
Greater China region is expected to be among the fastest
growing areas in the world. In the initial stage, the SBU
will be partnering with Ningbo Bird Company Limited, a
Ningbo-based company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and the top selling mobile phone distributor for

by financial year 2002/03 the sales volume of
communication-enabled PDA will overtake that of their

non-communicating counterparts.

In May 2001, Intel Capital Corporation, SB China Holdings
Pte Limited (a Softbank subsidiary) and UTStarcom, Inc.
altogether invested a sum of US$10.5 million in the Group’s
PDA operating arm (i.e. the legal entity of the PDA SBU) -
Group Sense PDA Holdings Limited. They subscribed for a
total of 171,818 Series A Preferred Shares which represent
approximately 16% voting rights and are given two board
seats to participate in the management of the PDA company.
At the same time of the investment, the PDA subsidiary also
entered into a collaboration agreement with Intel Semiconductor
Limited for technology and product development co-operation.
This is the first PDA company in the region that has successfully
attracted equity investment by reputable international strategic
investors like Intel and Softbank.
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Mcmc:gement Dlscu53|on & Analysis (continued)

The SBU recorded operating profit of HK$7.4 million in last
financial year. With a bigger sales volume and improved
component cost, the performance of the SBU will be substantially
improved in the current financial year of 2001/02, especially
after the new communication-enabled PDA products are
launched to the market.

PAGER SBU

f
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As explained in the 2000/01 interim financial report, the entry
barriers of the pagers market quickly disappeared after several
low-cost standard chipset solutions were made available to
smaller manufacturers. The market was suddenly flooded with
homogenous low-end products and cutthroat price wars were
inevitable. The management decided in middle of the financial
year to exit the low-end market, i.e. basic numeric and
alphanumeric messaging pagers, and to concentrate on the
high-end financial information broadcasting pagers. The
financial pagers involve sophisticated software development
work and substantial joint effort with the network operators
and thus require stronger software and RF (radio frequency)
capability.

Over the past nine months, the SBU has been working hard on
clearing inventory and collecting accounts receivable. Many of
the slow-moving inventory items were sold at cost or even
below cost in order to generate cash inflow. At the end of the
financial year 2000/01, the management decided to phase
out the pagers business. The SBU is now actively seeking
potential strategic business partners or buyers to take over
part or all of the business from the Group. In response to this
corporate decision, the management has made a special
provision on inventory and accounts receivable amounted to
HK$95.1 million to write down the book value to net realizable
value. Together with operating loss of HK$91.3 million arising
from sales of inventory below cost, the total loss attributable to

the Pager SBU is HK$186.4 million.

RESTRUCTURING EFFORT

EEE-_ZTT /' Z-UREEE=Z
M EXM—RINEBEALR U
BESEEERK  THEKLERE  HE
WEERBREROT ¢

The Group has carried out a series of restructuring measures
to consolidate the business and to streamline the operation
since the third financial quarter of 2000/01. Principal measures
could be summarized as follows:
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Management Discussion & Ana|y5|s (continued)

Inventory reduction and tighter control on accounts receivable
As at 30th September 2000, inventory and accounts receivable
was at historical high level of HK$399.4 million and
HK$327.1 million respectively. The management has
immediately taken steps to reduce them in an aggressive
manner. A special task force was set up fo review the disposition
of inventory regularly and sales personnel were instructed to
sell those slow-moving and excessive items with their best effort.
On the other hand, a very stringent credit policy was
implemented to control the growth of accounts receivable. At
the same time, the sefting up of SBU and the management's
directive to consolidate sales volume by concentrating on quality
instead of quantity also helped improving the situation. At as
31st March 2001, inventory and accounts receivable have
been both reduced to more reasonable level of HK$289.7
million and HK$185.6 million respectively.

Closure of USA office and several non-profitable branch offices
in Mainland China

In order to streamline the sales function, the USA office and
several Mainland China branch offices were closed down during
the second half of the financial year. The usual responsibilities
have been arranged to be either taken over by third party
organizations or transferred back to the headquarters. All
closure cost, which is immaterial in the context of the financial
statements, has been fully provided for in the accounts.

A company-wide rationalization program

All new headcount requests were frozen and prevailing
payroll was carefully reviewed to ensure maximum staff
efficiency could be achieved. Some vacancies have not been
replaced and the jobs were re-arranged among existing staff.
At the end of the financial year, the total number of staff on
the Group’s payroll, excluding associated companies, was
5,447, a 23% cut as compared to the peak level in the
financial year. Coupled with directors and senior
management voluntarily cut their salary packages by 10%
to 20% and waived their annual management bonus, total
staff cost has been successfully saved by 25%.

Disposal of certain non-critical assets
Following the decrease in staff headcount and consolidation of

business, certain office premises became surplus to operational
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Mcmc:gement Dlscu55|on & Analysis (continued)
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requirement and were disposed of in March 2001. The
transaction was completed in May 2001 but the loss on
disposal of HK$17.8 million was fully accounted for in
financial year 2000/01 and the proceed to be collected
amounted to HK$35.5 million was shown as Other
Receivables in the Balance Sheet. Besides leasehold
properties, the Group had also disposed of the pleasure
vessel during the year.

Deferment of certain capital expenditure

In order to preserve the Group's cash position, the management
has pushed back the capital expenditure related to a new
manufacturing plant that was scheduled to be operational by
the end of the financial year. The existing plant was re-arranged
instead to fulfill production requirement as a temporary measures
until the business volume increases again in future. On the
other hand, the directors will take a very cautious approach in
new investment initiatives.

Monthly overhead reduced significantly

The above and other measures have successfully streamlined
the operation of the Group and resulted in a saving of monthly
overhead up to 35%. The management believes the slimmer
organization now is optimal for the Group's current business
volume.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
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During the year, the Company had made several investments
in companies that were expected to supplement the Group’s
eBusiness initiatives. Below are brief description of three
principal investments:

From medical portal to health care magazine

In April 2000, the Company issued 20 million new shares to
Ideamall.com Limited at HK$1.30 per share to pay for the
20% interest in Net Plus Company Limited (“Net Plus”), a
company that owns and runs a Chinese medical and health
care portal called Cyber-Medic. In May 2000, the Group paid
HK$5.5 million cash to Net Plus to subscribe for 916 new
shares by exercising certain share options. Subsequent to the
Group's investment, Net Plus had invited another Hong Kong
listed company as shareholder to strengthen its shareholder

base. As at 31st March 2001, the Group is holding
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Management Discussion & Ano|y5|s (continued)

approximately 19.7% of the voting rights and two directors
are representing the Group in the board of Net Plus with one
of them being elected as the chairman of the board.

During the year, Net Plus has successfully expanded its operating
activities to include publishing of a health care magazine and
organizing health care seminars. The magazine, titled Health Plus,
is published monthly since December 2000 and is now one of the
major Chinese health care magazines in Hong Kong.

Language learning handheld devices

The Group invested in June 2000 HK$3.9 million in Lango IT
(Holdings) Limited (“LangolT”), a company formed with several
joint venture partners to deliver on-line interactive language
learning material to groups or individuals in Mainland China.
The role of the Group in the joint venture is to develop and
produce electronic handheld devices that are mainly for
language learning through downloading of material from the
internet. Together with an investment made by the Group in
one of LangolT’s subsidiaries amounted to HK$2.3 million in
1999, the total investment exposure of the Group is HK$6.2
million (equivalent to US$0.8 million). The first model of learning
device was successfully finished in May 2001 and is now
being tested by several potential customers for user acceptance.
The management considers this product a sensible extension of
the Group's electronic dictionary products and will watch its
development with great interest.

Virtual marketplace for electronic products

The Group entered into agreements in May 2000 with
SUNeVision Holdings Limited and several other companies,
including Gold Peak Industries (Holding) Limited, to form
AsianE2E.com - the Asia’s first electronics exchange on the
internet. The Group subscribed for HK$5.0 million, which
represents approximately 5% of shareholding, and has
nominated a director to represent the Group in the board.
The HK$5.0 million capital injection is to be done in two
stages - the first HK$2.5 million has been called and paid
and the remainder HK$2.5 million is not yet called. It is the
management’s intention to make use of this virtual
marketplace to enhance the Group’s procurement capability
by accessing to bigger supplier database and quicker
information flow.
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As at 31st March 2001, the Group has on its payroll
265 (2000: 318) employees in Hong Kong, 5,101
(2000: 6,244) in Mainland China and 81 (2000: 48) in
Singapore representing decreases of about 16.7% and
18.3% and an increase of 68.8% respectively when
compared with prior year. In addition to salary payment
and normal fringe benefits such as annual leave, medical
insurance and provident fund, the Group also has a
Share Option Scheme for executive directors and senior
staff.

In order to upgrade the quality of our work force, the Group
continued to invest in staff training and development. During
the financial year, the Training Development had organized
training programs for over 100 supervisory staff in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, so as to enhance their people
management skill. For engineering staff, a comprehensive
“Engineer Orientation Program” that is designed to help
engineers to familiarize with the product development and
manufacturing process is offered to all new recruits. All workers
are systematically trained and assessed to improve job
knowledge and productivity.

PROPERTIES
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On 28th March 2001, the Group disposed of one of its
leasehold properties to an independent third party at a
consolidation of HK$35.5 million. The loss of HK$17.8 million
arising from the disposal was charged to the profit and loss
account for the year ended 31st March 2001. The property
was acquired by the Group in May 1993 as office premises
which the management considered surplus to the current
operation.

Apart from the disposal above, there was no significant
acquisition and disposal of leasehold properties during the
financial year. No revaluation was carrying out for the Group's
leasehold properties in Hong Kong at 31st March 2001.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
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Bank balances and cash amounted to HK$125.3 million at
end of the financial year, which is HK$76.7 million less
than that of prior year. Subsequent to year end, the Group's
bank balances were significantly increased in May 2001 by
HK$35.5 million from the proceed of the disposal of
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leasehold properties and HK$81.9 million (equivalent to
US$10.5 million) from the investment monies paid by the
strategic investors to the PDA subsidiary.

Total bank borrowings (i.e. long-term plus shortterm bank
borrowings) increased from HK$207.6 million as at 31st
March 2000 to HK$267.4 million as at 30th September
2000, the date of interim financial report. As a result of
business consolidation and continuous improvement in
inventory and accounts receivable in the second half of the
financial year, cash flow became healthier and bank
borrowings decreased to HK$221.0 million as at 31st March
2001.

The maturity profile of bank borrowings is contained in note
25 to the financial statements. All of the bank borrowings are
on floating rate basis.

The management maintains a very close working relationship
with the Group’s bankers to ensure their continuing support.

CHARGES ON ASSETS
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Certain leasehold properties are pledged as security for general
banking facilities granted to the Group. As at 31st March
2001, the carrying value of the assets pledged is HK$117.2
million, which is HK$51.6 million less than that of prior year
because of the disposal of certain leasehold properties in March
2001.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

R-ZEBEE-F=ZA=Z+-—-H EBEH
22,182,000 B T E B REZRITRR
Z 4 o Ltk ¥ A F 3 497,360,000 T
FTERA-_ZE—F=ZANMNEBOEK
&% o

As at 31st March 2001, trade bills discounted to banks with
recourse amounted to HK$22.2 million, which is HK$7.4 million

higher than that of prior year due to increase of export business
in March 2001.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES AND TREASURY POLICY

B R BB B R
SEABONBERSE  EERKSE
BEEUARBRAAERAIAREEE
RE-IBONREBERUATE
E-REEENMBERER  EEE
BRAMEHEERBRBEEZZLENIN
EERBMUERE - £B Y EETHE
MEANNEZTINIERKEES -

Most of the Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in either Hong Kong Dollars, United States
Dollars or China Renmenbi. A small portion of the Group's
purchases of raw material is denominated in Japanese Yens. It
is the Group's treasury policy to manage its foreign currency
exposure whenever its financial impact is material to the Group.
The Group does not engage in inferest rate or foreign currency
speculative activities.

= HEM R KD N
Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
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Dlrect ors and Senior Management Profiles

HWITES

Executive Directors

EHEE BEI7H AAEEZEREXR
B Ae—  HEEAEE2BERE
RHERER HEEREBPXK
2, gEE+8 R—Ah=FEhA
EEBI XL SHBIERBEEIER
gl o YR ANtE+-—BEREE
BTABHEEE] HEBAEAEBET
Y¥EeeRLEEFEIZEZHERE
R TABBEEIRERIEEES
CEE EAMERESKRERES R
RRETEZHNZEERE - HBEER
R2Z%H o

EER BER AXEEZESH
BEFRARAZ—  HEELXEEER
CERBRTSHEBEREHTR - BEBEEE
BEIKREBEEFIRBXE EEFH
REBEFERZTSHEEFEERER
BT AELER -HAERZZRAE °

EWEE BE3NH BERZZX

AeR-—ANZFE-_AMALER >
EEAEBASZSEE THREERET
HIR - EIRHEEBAEBER2XELE
i % 3 B University of Leicester 48 2% = 1%
HIRADEREEELEN  EEEK
TRABEBEB T —S&R -

BEB REMR - FRAXKEEZLT
WE WEXREBEIKRE BEB
EHMAERAEABALISHAAS
CERBE WRIABEREERAZNR
BReIHEEBLIBEN KR -ANZ
EMAREE  EMARKEA - B1F
BRZETZEREFERAT - KR
—WARFE+-REZERETEEZH
TEE ZEUK EAMNR -RES
BERECEXBRZSHK -

TAM Wai Ho, Samson, aged 37, is the Chairman and one
of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for the Group’s
corporate planning and new product strategy. He graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s
degree in Science. He received “The Young Industrialist Award
of Hong Kong” awarded by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries in September 1992 and was awarded as one of the
“1997 Ten Outstanding Young Persons” in November 1997.
He is the Chairman of The Hong Kong Electronic Industries
Association and the Vice President of the Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Council. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Productivity Council, a Director of The Applied Research Council
and a member of the Electronics Advisory Committee of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He is the younger
brother of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas.

TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, aged 39, is the Managing Director
and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for
the overall marketing and sales strategies of the Group's
products. He has a Diploma in Electronic Engineering from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has over sixteen years
of experience in marketing electronic components and consumer
electronic products. He is the elder brother of Mr. Tam Wai
Ho, Samson.

TAM Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, aged 33, is the wife of Mr. Tam
Wai Ho, Samson. She joined the Group in February 1992 and
is responsible for human resources management, administrative
matters and electronic publishing of the Group. She has a
Bachelor’'s degree in Arts from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master’s degree in Training and Human Resource
Management from the University of Leicester, U.K., and has
over eleven years of experience in management and
administration.

LO Chi Chung, William, aged 41, is also the Company
Secretary of the Group. He graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and is a fellow member of both the
Hong Kong Society of Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He also holds a M.B.A. degree
from the University of Warwick, U.K. Prior to joining the Group
in 1993, Mr. Lo has worked for several major international
electronics companies. In November 1996, he was appointed
as Executive Director of the Group and is responsible for
financial, information technology, investor relations and
corporate development matters.
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Kazuhiro OTANI, aged 40, joined the Group as Executive
Director in April 1997. He is responsible for OEM/ODM
business in the Strategic Product Division and corporate business
planning. He graduated from the Kansai University of Foreign
Studies in Osaka, Japan with a Bachelor of Arts in Foreign
Languages, and has been working for a Japanese electronics
company for fourteen years before he joined the Group. He
has spent the latter ten years in the Hong Kong office of this
Japanese company which has been one of the Group’s major
components suppliers since 1987, being responsible for sales
and marketing of electronic components such as IC, LCD, efc.

LEE Koon Hung, aged 38, joined the Group in 1988 and
was appointed as Executive Director of the Group in April
1998. He is responsible for the development of new products
of the Group. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with Higher Certificate in Electronic Engineering and
obtained a Bachelor's degree in computer science from Asia
International Open University. He has seventeen years of
experience in product development.

CHUI Wing Kay, Lawrence, aged 44, was appointed as
Executive Director of the Group in April 1998, and is
responsible for the sales and marketing of translator, paging
and security system products in Hong Kong and PRC market.
Mr. Chui graduated from the U.K. Teeside Polytechnic with a
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science and has twenty-two
years of experience in sales and marketing of electronic
products. Before joining the Group in 1995, he was the General
Manager of Chevalier (OA) Limited.

Dr. FOK Ting Yeung, James, aged 52, joined the Group
as Executive Director in April 1999. He is responsible for the
Group's strategic operations. He holds a Bachelor of Science
in Engineering and a Master of Philosophy from the University
of Hong Kong, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree from the
University of London. He has thirty-one years of experience in
many areas, including academic research, industrial research,
production management, product development, consulting and
strategic business development. Before joining the Group, he
served Hong Kong Productivity Council for thirteen years as
Divisional Manager of Electronics Services Division, Branch
Director of Design and Automation Branch and finally as Deputy
Executive Director. He has served on various committees of the
Applied Research Council, Innovation and Technology
Commission, and Vocational Training Council. He is a member
of the Design Council of Hong Kong.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
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YUNG Wing Ki, Samuel, aged 43, is a Senior District
Director of American International Assurance Company
(Bermuda) Limited. He joined the Group in January 1995 and
is a member of the Audit Committee. He has over nineteen
years of experience in insurance and received “The Ten
Outstanding Young Persons Award” in November 1994. He is
the Chairman of The Outstanding Young Persons’ Association
(2000-2002) and was also the President of The Life Underwriter
Association Hong Kong (1991), the President of the General
Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong (1995-1996),
the Co-Chairman of the Asia Pacific Life Insurance Council
(1996-1997) and the International Committee Chairman of
GAMA International (1997-1999). He currently sits in a number
of fund raising committees as either chairman or committee
member for several major charities.

HO Kwok Shing, Harris, aged 41, is the director of East
Bloom Industrial Limited. He joined the Group in January 1995
and is a member of the Audit Committee. He has a Diploma in
Journalism from the Shue Yan College and has over eighteen
years of experience in marketing consumer electronic products.

Senior Management

RFEL RE4R - AFKEEZHHBR
E BEAREERASZERZIEE
BETENV YTAEBSHAMOERE
BRIALASTMOAELEREE - K
R—ANEEMALER  EMAXE
Ba o RERBEBEBLHTQAAIE-
REMBREFFEACERBERBTZF
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CHAN Yu Chung, Richard, aged 41, is the Financial
Controller of the Group. He holds a M.B.A. degree from the
University of Warwick, U.K. and is a fellow member of both
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in
1995, Mr. Chan had worked for several listed companies in
Hong Kong. He has over ten years of experience in finance
and accounting field.

FUNG Ping Chuen, Philip, aged 41, joined the Group as
General Manager-TQM, Human Resources and Administration
in July, 1999. Mr. Fung graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist
University with a Bachelor Degree in Arts (Sociology), and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resources
Management. He also holds a M.B.A. degree from the University
of East Asia and a Diploma in Training Management from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Group,
he has over twelve years of experience in the field of human
resources management.
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Masakatsu TSUJI, aged 63, is the Deputy Managing Director
- Manufacturing of the Group. He has extensive experience in
manufacturing of electronic products such as personal computers
and personal digital assistants. Prior to joining the Group in
July, 1999, he worked for a famous Japanese electronics
company as a senior management staff for thirty-eight years
and has considerable overseas working experience in USA,
Korea and other Southeast Asian countries.

Yuji TAGAMI, aged 48, joined the Group as General
Manager — Overseas Pagers Business in October 1999. He is
responsible for China/Overseas Telecom business of the Group.
He graduated from Kyushu Institute of Design in Japan with a
Bachelor of Artistic Engineering, and had been working in two
Japanese telecom companies with twenty-two years of
experience in the research and development and marketing

field.

LUK Chui Yung, Judith, aged 34, is the General Manager
of the Electronic Dictionary Division of the Group. She
graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a Higher
Diploma in Business Management. She has twelve years of
experience in marketing and sales of consumer electronic
products. She joined the Group in 1989. She is the wife of
Mr. Lee Koon Hung.

CHAN Ho Bun, Steve, aged 40, is the Deputy General
Manager of the Group’s Strategic Product Division. He
graduated from University of Birmingham, U.K. with a Bachelor
of Science in Computer Science. He has over fifteen years of
experience in the field of electronics and computer products.
He joined the Group in 1993.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

KABRAREERAA - EMBLAAR
BHENRAcTEEXBREZN  HERH
EXBELEFEAMER  TERMAA
FHEHE SFEHA - EIRKERRER
BRI EEZETER °

EAXAEER  AEERERLEESY
BEM ié&iﬁ’éﬁ MELERR
ERERBE O RMEHIBERURE
Hith % o

ZERBNDE

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and associates are the design,
manufacture and sale of a range of handheld electronic
information products, primarily personal digital assistants,
electronic dictionaries, pager products and original design
manufacturing (“ODM") products.

In the current year, the Group decided to discontinue the pager
products operation, the manufacture and sales of rechargeable
batteries operation and managing of a football team, in order
to re-allocate the resources to the other operations.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

AEFHEZ-ZE B=+-—
CEBHINEAERFITEZHREE
% °

i &

|
# A
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The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2001
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 47
of the annual report.

RESERVES

AEBRARARAEARBEZEZER
MBI R BRRME30

:'EREE &{/\Féﬁ

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

BE_ZZ-F=RA=t-HLEHFE:

() AEBz2H&AKRAEKREE D B4
REBEN8%K 30% B tHEH -

(i NEBzHBEARANAXEERDT D 5
R £ B QY 9%k 31%2 8 %
BH (IFTEREAME2HKER
B) o

BESETH ALEES HEE
AT REFNEBBBADAS%ERE
ZRRITEEGAAETRERE AL
R E -

For the year ended 31st March, 2001:

(i) The Group's largest customer and five largest customers
accounted for approximately 8% and 30% respectively of
the Group's total turnover.

(i) The Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 9% and 31% respectively of
the Group's total purchases (not including purchases of
items which are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholders who owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest in
the five largest customers or suppliers.
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for each of the five years ended 31st March, 2001 is
set out on page 99 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

REER  AEERBEZERKE £ER
RE BERESENIERIESAY
% 14,000,000 Jt ~ 11,000,000/ Tt &
19,000,00058 T °

HEFRRAKGERAFERAZAEY

X BERRBE2AMCZEBEREIR
KB HmEM TS
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During the year, the Group acquired furniture, fixtures and
equipment of approximately HK$14 million, plant and
machinery of approximately HK$11 million and toolings and
moulds of approximately HK$19 million.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 15
to the financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

AEER-ZFETE-F=ZA=F+-HZZE
EMEZFBIRNFEREI0E °

ERARERLRRE

Details of the major properties of the Group at 31st March,
2001 are set out on page 100 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

ARABABRARELRRESE2EFHF
152 B &R 7N BF 3 3R R M sE28% 29 ©

RAERFER  AREREBBEXSZME
RARBEMOAREG 2RM > FHEHT
MRABHHRME28

Details of movements in the share capital and share option
scheme of the Company are set out in notes 28 and 29 to the
financial statements, respectively.

During the year, the Company repurchased certain of its own
shares through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Details of which are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.
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Report of ’rhe Dlrec’rors (continued)

EERES DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS" SERVICE

B#% &N CONTRACTS

FAREEADRAESEREERHZ The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

BT date of this report were:

BITEE: Executive directors:

HER (FE) TAM Wai Ho, Samson (Chairman)

BEX (EFHREKHE) TAM Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director)

EEEE TAM Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

mER LO Chi Chung, William

XamE Kazuhiro OTANI

] LEE Koon Hung

BEXRAE CHUI Wing Kay, Lawrence

EEF FOK Ting Yeung, James

FRITESE: Non-executive directors:

RHE LEUNG Hung Hum, Jayson
(R=ZZEE2EFNA=Z+-H&ME) (resigned on 31st August, 2000)

x @+ YAU Kim Chung, Peter
(R=ZZ2Z2EF+ZA-HEME) (resigned on 1st December, 2000)

BUFMITEE : Independent non-executive directors:

BKH YUNG Wing Ki, Samuel

1 Bl B HO Kwok Shing, Harris

BEBEADQT 22 548 587K 1691
TEEAERMBERAEYBESERID
RRBEBREMT-

FFEXRDTESZ2EHHYR —F -

REOBETRRBFASEREER
LEEHEITRAEMAKETTR - F
WHEARE CEERBERIN) MALZR
BEK -

In accordance with Bye-laws 87 and 169 of the Company's
Bye-laws, Messrs. Lee Koon Hung and Ho Kwok Shing, Harris
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

All non-executive directors have been appointed for a term of
one year.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
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Name of director

BEE Notes 1 and 2

Tam Wai Ho, Samson

BEE Notes 1 and 2

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas

EBEE
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

Lo Chi Chung, William

ABNE

Kazuhiro Otani

FRE

Lee Koon Hung

EXE

Chui Wing Kay, Lawrence
Fok Ting Yeung, James

Yung Wing Ki, Samuel

Notes 1 and 2

Note 2

Note 2

Note 2

Note 2

Note 2

1. It % 537,877,118 B 4 3 L Earnmaill
Holdings Limited 2 & & & &0 * % A A H The
Samson 1992 Trust} The Thomas 1992
TrustiR AL RELEZHESE o The
Samson 1992 Trust: — B2 K EET -
H2RREIZABEERZAERES
ZEZ 4+ o The Thomas 1992 Trust& —
2RENANEGT HE2ERESZABEE
BREEEREGRBEREHZL -

Nature of interests

At 31st March, 2001,

the interests of the directors and their

associates in the issued share capital of the Company and its

associated corporations, within the meaning of the Securities
(Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (“SDI Ordinance”), as

recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 29 of the SDI Ordinance and in the share options of

the Company were as follows:

FisRABA

Number of ordinary shares held
Fis@%E
EAEE FXE#SE Rt a #y RAkEHA
Number
Personal Family Other of share
interests  interests interests Total options held
4,000,000 - 537,877,118 541,877,118 4,100,000
7,000,000 - 537,877,118 544,877,118 4,100,000
1,500,000 - 537,877,118 539,377,118 2,000,000
2,150,000 - - 2,150,000 1,500,000
- - - - 6,000,000
926,000 450,000 - 1,376,000 3,050,000
1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 500,000
- - - - 1,000,000
830,000 - - 830,000 -

Notes:

1.

The 537,877,118 shares are registered in the name of Earnmill
Holdings Limited, a company ultimately beneficially owned by The
Samson 1992 Trust and The Thomas 1992 Trust in equal shares.
The Samson 1992 Trust is a discretionary trust, the discretionary
beneficiaries of which include Mr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson and
Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian. The Thomas 1992 Trust is a
discretionary trust, the discretionary beneficiaries of which include
Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas and Mrs. Tam Ng Lai Yuen, Jocelyn
(spouse of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas).

(4

==
o
=]

n=

)

=39
g
o

I

-

Annual Report 2001



42

i
dlinl

=3
=

= W E E @

=]
] I‘E

Report of the Directors (continved

EEREACESRER (8)

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

2.
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Tam Wai Ho, Samson

BEX

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas

BEEE
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

Lo Chi Chung, William

KBAE

Kazuhiro Otani

B

Lee Koon Hung

Chui Wing Kay, Lawrence

BEEXF
Fok Ting Yeung, James

R-ZSESEH
mA—A

At
1.4.2000

2,500,000
800,000
800,000

2,500,000
800,000
800,000

1,000,000
500,000
500,000

500,000
500,000
500,000

2,500,000
2,500,000
500,000
500,000

150,000
450,000
1,200,000
700,000
700,000

500,000
500,000

500,000
500,000

2. The following directors have personal and family interests in share

options granted under the Company’s Share Option Scheme, defails
of which are set out in note 29 to the financial statements, to
subscribe for shares in the Company, as follows:

EEAKERA
Number of share options
BERER BERER R-ZSSE—F BRiITER
T L] =R=+-—H (AT PR E)
Exercise
price
Exercised Cancelled per share
during during At (subject to
the year the year 31.3.2001 adjustment)
BT
HK$
- - 2,500,000 0.39
- - 800,000 0.38
- - 800,000 0.65
- - 2,500,000 0.39
- - 800,000 0.38
- - 800,000 0.65
- - 1,000,000 0.39
- - 500,000 0.38
- - 500,000 0.65
- - 500,000 0.39
- - 500,000 0.38
- - 500,000 0.65
- - 2,500,000 0.49
- - 2,500,000 0.39
- - 500,000 0.38
- - 500,000 0.65
- 150,000 - 1.07
- - 450,000 0.32
- - 1,200,000 0.39
- - 700,000 0.38
- - 700,000 0.65
500,000 - - 0.38
- - 500,000 0.65
- - 500,000 0.38
- - 500,000 0.65
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)
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options were included under the interests in share options of W
BEEABREREZR - Mr. Lee Koon Hung set out above. “\* :
-
MREXFBEEN  RESUEFEARX Save as disclosed above, and other than certain nominee -
REAEBEHFEHRNBELAZ2ETREASR shares in subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Group, o
RN RZEBEE-F=ZA=+-— at 31st March, 2001 (i) none of the directors or their .
B ((SESIARSBHEATHRESR associates had any personal interests, family interests, a3’
ARAAHAEEMNHELARA(ERERLH corporate interests or other interests in any securities of the :
BHEGH) MRS HRBEEMEA Company or any of its associated corporations as defined _
BiE > Rk#Ez QAR RHAEMGE in the SDI Ordinance; and (i) none of the directors or their =
@ RMEESIAREEBR T AmA spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to g
THFZHMERIBALIRS  IARF subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised E%:
RWETEEMZED - any such right during the year. 35
<

EEBEARNDH
B % 2 & 7

Mr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
hold non-voting deferred shares in Group Sense Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, as set out in note 42 to the financial
statements.

BREXARI 2B LERARES S The wife of Mr. Lee Koon Hung is an employee of the Company
N A within the meaning of the Company’s Share Options Scheme,

and was granted share options of the Company. Such share

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

BREXHBEEEN  ARAHLZEN
MEARABRBEEMBEIAREAFR
EFABEEHREFEEAZS  HSAH
DRAESAEBARRIAFZEMEA
BEzROAEFMES °

EEREHNZ
EXE®R

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

REAEE AEBROBELEBRA
ARBEETEMHEELN15000,000E
CEBEEBRERLEEZRLADEEESERE

Bk

REBRXRZHIREERBZZLES
AR LKEXRZDNBRAEEAZLEE
EBAERBRMRRET

During the year, the Group purchased electronic components
amounting to approximately HK$15 million from Genfield
Enterprises Limited, a company in which Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas, has a beneficial interest.

In the opinion of those directors not having an inferest in the
above transactions, the transactions were carried out in the

ordinary course of business of the Group and on normal
commercial terms.

pe<
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Report of the Directors (confinved)

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (Continved)

EEREHNZ

B AEZ (&)

Bl AABRESNAA
FEEANBAISIFEBNE L
ﬂ%$¢§%iﬁ%ﬁ$¢§ﬁﬁ
ﬁﬁ%%ﬁik%éo
TERR

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

R ETESZREREE
S BER AR ESRHE16(1)1F
ﬁﬁ%’ﬁfz)zi%ki%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ R =

|

ZEE-F=ZR=Z1+T-H BMEAE
ﬁﬂiﬁﬂaﬁéﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁo%jﬂxtzﬁ
)

EIRBRBE K

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
directors, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance
discloses no person as having an interest of 10% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st March,
2001,

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

ERBESH2HEBRIIRAEGH
]RERMEE 41

EABLEEE

Details of significant post balance sheet event are set out in
note 41 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

RAZLAAABUTEFAEETMR
BEABERZAE MREBR
B NEERAQXARBTH
BB BRAERRER °

)

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

BETBEERTEH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ARAR-_ZFTE-HF=ZA=+—-H The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st
t-FREETEBHREXEHE March, 2001 with the Code of Best Practice, as set out in
BR2BES L£mE A M &+ M A H Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
EELtmEFscHRERATA - on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
78 T AUDITORS
BREY - BHERISFTHTARK A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
M e RARBEEREAQRAZRRE re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the
FRELRE - Company.
AREEG® On behalf of the Board
FE Tam Wai Ho, Samson

HEX Chairman

=58 Hong Kong

—E2EE-F+tAWHAH

4th July, 2001
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Certified Public Accountants ESBOBFEZBEDI11%
26/F, Wing On Centre KL2PIN26iE

111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

AR (BR)FRLOFAER X
(EFEREAMAELZER 2 7)
ARBEE TR ERERNSE4TE 8
EREBEERMZEERIGR

ZHBEHR

ESREBMcERNE

7B AR E S
Report of the Auditors

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu

TO THE MEMBERS OF GROUP SENSE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 47 to 98
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

ERACESAEAERH
DF2HBEREX K
BHERE  EE L Z
BezgBE-

\]
/

i
SR W [jm
o oM

=

op 2

S
3R
.

FTZ2ERERRBATERIFZ
R HZEWEBERRREBULE
R oEmBRRELEFEE -

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view
it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are

selected and applied consistently.
It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to

you.

Basis of opinion

ERER
ATREREBEFIMAERM
REEANETERINFE BREE
BEULBEFAERETBRRF
HAERRESTEEBZERE
BREFGEERGRRASTUBRR
BRECERGTRAEH  FETE
CEFBREREES EQRAK &
SEZEBERR REAERER
PEHBREZESTEHEK -

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied

and adequately disclosed.
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Report of the Auditors (confinved)

46

FTERERETERITEE - 9UE
B-UATRALAZENREERE
B ERATREESRZORERRE &S
BREAZREAFEEERHARL  FHE
BrHE G#XEZRK  ATFCEH
EZSUBBRRAACENERRLR
BRH - ATHE ATZERIEE
ARTIHIERBYTEBER -

g

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

TRAEALAZVERRYEE HE
i rRH BARAR BEEER=
TE-—F=ZA=Z+t—HBZ2HEMRR
kR BEEBBEZEZHLEEZFER
BeRE UTRBEBLAAKAEAZ
BFEEXRXMESHER -

2 B ek

A

BEH -FAERRASEREAT
=]
BERE “E2E-FLtAMDEA

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as
at 31st March, 2001 and of the loss and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 4th July, 2001
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

2001 2000
Wt & TET THER
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
X Turnover 3 1,612,622 1,405,942
85 & B A Cost of sales (1,436,711) (1,010,099)
EF Gross profit 175,911 395,843
H g A Other revenue 5 45,727 38,944
55 I B 8% e Research and development expenses (107,578) (89,646)
DHREEXZ Distribution and selling expenses (245,663) (209,64¢)
TR X Administrative expenses 6 (107,962) (79,699)
HEHNNEZEE Loss on disposal of leasehold properties (17,778) -
KeE (BR) &R Operating (loss) profit 7 (257,343) 55,796
AE X H Interest expenses 8 (12,912) (8,325)
HE-BERAZER Loss on disposal of an associate (324) -
ELhHE AREE Share of results of associates (2,120) (1,175)
BiAl (&5 18) & 7 (Loss) profit before taxation (272,699) 46,296
BiEEE (X H) Taxation credit (charge) 11 1,709 (4,310)
DY RERA (F518) BF  (Loss) profit before minority interest (270,990) 41,986
DHBRRER Minority interest 851 -
IR R BEAL (B18) & (Loss) profit attributable to shareholders 12 (270,139) 41,986
B 2 Dividends 13 - (11,001)
REE (BEB) EMEF (Loss) profit for the year, retained (270,139) 30,985
B (5HR) 27 (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14
E R (BAL) Basic (cents) (22.8) 4.1
#58 GB4l) Diluted (cents) N/A 41

g
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R=-ZE-H=H=+-—H8 At 31st March, 2001

2001 2000
K & THET FE T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - BERR Property, plant and equipment 15 255,842 311,665
M ERE Intellectual property 16 - -
REE QAR Interests in associates 18 22,278 20,428
BERE Investments in securities 19 48,284 6,794
Hit&EE Other assets 20 466 466
326,870 339,353
mEEE Current assets
F7E Inventories 21 289,724 337,657
FE Ui & BR X Trade receivables 22 185,623 292,212
HL {7 & Uy BR X Other receivables 23 73,563 47,382
FE UL B & A B BR X Amounts due from associates 17,271 1,181
AJ U = 518 Taxation recoverable 301 405
RITHEBRES Bank balances and cash 125,339 201,998
691,821 880,835
mENR R Current liabilities
ENBERR Trade payables 24 156,725 172,133
H s B 11 BR X Other payables 114,287 104,852
WENE R 2’ = Deposits from customers 577 17,294
B — B E DR R Amount due to an associate 454 1,270
Fe A3 IR & Proposed dividend - 5,941
FE A5 B 18 Taxation payable 1,312 1,071
RITEE-N—FR Bank borrowings — due within
2| 5 one year 25 181,571 161,398
HEANEY Obligations under hire purchase
- R—FRIH contracts — due within one year 26 2,525 27
457,451 463,986
mEEERE Net current assets 234,370 416,849
EEHERTHAR Total assets less current
liabilities 561,240 756,202
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

R=-ZFE-H=H=+-H8 At 31st March, 2001

2001 2000
Wt & TET THER
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
EREBRR Non-current liabilities
RITEE-RN-—F& Bank borrowings - due after
Rt one year 25 39,385 46,186
HEANEY Obligations under hire purchase
-R-—F&RIH contracts - due after one year 26 2,646 70
EEH A Deferred taxation 27 - 2,609
42,031 48,865
519,209 707,337
CE 4] Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 28 118,630 111,604
i Reserves 30 376,384 595,733
BRELEER Surplus of shareholders’ funds 495,014 707,337
PHRRER Minority interest 24,195 -
519,209 707,337

HERFBAZBEZCHBERREN=-F The financial statements on pages 47 to 98 were approved by the Board
E-FLtANBRESERAE  YMH of Directors on 4th July, 2001 and are signed on its behalf by:
THESRREZSEE .

HEX Tam Wai Ho, Samson

EER Tam Wai Tong, Thomas

EE Director

g
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Company Balance Sheet

R=-ZE-H=H=+-—H8 At 31st March, 2001

2001 2000
o & T#&T FTET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EREDEE Non-current assets
REEARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 17 67,161 118,163
N E Current assets
H i & U8R X Other receivables 1,275 849
FE UL BfY /BB A R BR X Amounts due from subsidiaries 422,697 496,998
ERAERz— Amount due from an associate
BERARK of the Group 12 12
A Y =] % 18 Taxation recoverable - 368
RTERRES Bank balances and cash 31 21
424,015 498,248
mRE &R Current liabilities
H Al & A BR X Other payables 974 893
R IR & Proposed dividend - 5,941
974 6,834
mEEERE Net current assets 423,041 491,414
HEERE Net assets 490,202 609,577
CE 4] Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 28 118,630 111,604
i Reserves 30 371,572 497,973
ERELEER Surplus of shareholders’ funds 490,202 609,577

EEE
HEX
EF

Tam Wai Ho, Samson
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
Director



GEREABE X
Consolidated Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses

BZE-FZ-F=ZB=+—-HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

2001 2000
FET THER
HK$’000 HK$'000
HBREEINELM Exchange (losses) gains arising
EETRERRN on translation of overseas
REBERZER operations not recognised in
(B 18) W= the consolidated income
statement (332) 216
REE (BE)ER (Loss) profit for the year (270,139) 41,986
BR (BB BFAHE Total recognised (losses) gains (270,471) 42,202
BWE-MEBARZHE Elimination against reserves of
TE 7 8 P 0 BR goodwill arising on acquisition
of a subsidiary (15,550) -
WEHRHEAAZHE Elimination against reserves of
TE R 8 0 BR goodwill arising on acquisition
of associates (8,218) -
(294,239) 42,202

- FE R

i -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BZE-FZ-F=ZB=+—-HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

2001 2000
Wt & TET THER
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BEXRBZRARHE Net cash outflow from
BE operating activities 31 (66,510) (52,118)
BREOBERMEERA Returns on investments
and servicing of finance
2 W F & Interest received 2,332 1,184
ENFE Interest paid (12,912) (8,325)
ENRE Dividends paid (5,941) (10,118)
BREOBERMEER Net cash outflow from
ZHERHESE returns on investments
and servicing of finance (16,521) (17,259)
2R Taxation
ENEBREHR Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (940) (2,937)
BEBANEHED Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 385 132
EftERE Net tax paid (555) (2,805)
BRBEED Investing activities
BEWE BERR Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (43,019) (43,133)
BEBELNTF Purchase of associates (12,724) (2,628)
BEBMELED Purchase of unlisted overseas
RERS investment securities (12,849) (968)
BEEBELD Purchase of unlisted investment
RERS securities in Hong Kong (8,555) -
BEEBRLILTRERS Purchase of listed investment
securities in Hong Kong - (640)
WiE—MEAE Acquisition of a subsidiary
(WBEREFRE (net of cash and cash
£E1E A FH) equivalents acquired of) 32 - -
HEWE BER Proceeds from disposal of property,
REBEREQ I plant and equipment, other than
Z WA leasehold properties 8,584 56
HEREZEZ ZBA Proceeds from disposal of
investment securities 686 21,888
BRIDZRERHE Net cash outflow from
BE investing activities (67,877) (25,425)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continved)

BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

2001 2000
Wt & TET THER
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Rt BEMReRHE Net cash outflow before
b3 ] financing (151,463) (97,607)
L Financing 33
B 17 3 4T Issue of shares 64,717 130,824
EBBRITHER New bank loans obtained 57,973 62,171
BERTER Repayment of bank loans (65,044) (21,970)
EERBER Repayment of mortgage loans (5,853) (13,858)
R 17 = B8 Repurchase of shares (2,402) -
EEHBENEYR Repayment of obligations under
hire purchase contracts (828) (26)
B8 BITRHZXE Share repurchase/issue expenses (9) (2,757)
MBEZHERTARBE Net cash inflow from financing 48,554 154,384
ReRASEERE (Decrease) increase in cash
Z (im 2 )8 in and cash equivalents (102,909) 56,777
FZHaRE& Cash and cash equivalents at
#E®WA the beginning of the year 110,900 54,113
SrrEEEBE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes (46) 10
FRZBEGRES Cash and cash equivalents
#E®WA at the end of the year 7,945 110,900
ReRB&SERA Analysis of the balances of
BBRZOH cash and cash equivalents
RITHEBRES Bank balances and cash 125,339 201,998
ERBREBER Trust receipt loans (75,428) (69,437)
RITEX Bank overdrafts (41,966) (21,661)
7,945 110,900

ZEE-FF R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BZE-FZ-F=ZB=+—-HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

94

~REE

AAAEEREEMA TR S H
SAERAT  ERAEEBHA
XEHERAT(THXF]) L

==

|1-_| o

ADABREZRAT - AHE
AARBEAAZEEEB AR
i OMERMESEYLRTA
MES TZABAHNGYE
BIBRA MUAERREHR
HEBEZEIER -

EAFEE SEREFLETH
EmEfF FLEERFEERE
HMELERBFARFLEERR
Bifh e

TEEHHRBE
EELEE T Y o
B LHBHBESHEFRE
fii o

RREAVBBRRFIEAZEIES
ATEBE - BREE-REFRAUM
FFIWMT

FaEE
GEMBBRREEAQXARAEMK
BARABEZEEF=A=+—-ALt
ZHBHRE -

GERERRCERAFERARE
FHHARSIBAELERRAEHE
BRI HEZHBLRARBEAQ
BZKE -

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and associates are the design,
manufacture and sale of a range of handheld electronic information
products, primarily personal digital assistants, electronic
dictionaries, pager products and original design manufacturing
products.

In the current year, the Group decided to discontinue the pager
products operations, the manufacture and sales of rechargeable
batteries operation and managing of a football team.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention as modified for revaluation of certain investments

in securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The
principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st
March each year.

The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contined)

TEEHREBE(F)
ReRE(EHE)

BWREHBARAIBELIRFEL
ZCHEAEARBELDERBARE
ZAFEEEREBRHEE T
BERTREEZEEREZLYF
BEZEZH CBERUBFEER
ERARE GEHEMNBLIIN
BELFK FFEHEZBEHC
BREATEREREEZHE -

SERAABZAEEARER
ERUCEHREERHEHE -

BExw

EXBEAXREAEEANREFH
EERBEREREEHR) K
HERBEZCUBMKERRZFE

RHE -

W A w2
HEWARERNERERES
BE EBRIAAR-

RBBRAREERBREHRER - &
N

REBMARKRREWR 2 EF#ER
B EBRIAR-

RITERZFMEWAUEE AR
R B A RELNEBNS R
= o

BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Any goodwill or capital reserve arising on the acquisition of

subsidiaries or associates, which represents the difference between
the fair value of the purchase consideration and the fair value
ascribed to the separable net assets at the date of acquisition, is
dealt with through reserves in the year of acquisition. On disposal
of a subsidiary or an associate, the aftributable amount of goodwill
previously eliminated against or credited to reserves is included in
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal of the subsidiary
or associate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group have been eliminated on consolidation.

Turnover

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold, net of returns and sales taxes, and services rendered by the
Group to outside customers.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and fitle
has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-TZ-H=ZH=+—-HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

TEEHREBE(F)
PR BEREM

ME BERKBEERADMG
ENBRINEINR - KABEZE
EEZREERREMAEZA
EEEZIBAEUIHEARRAR
MmBcEEEMN EZEELER
BEER —BAXHMEER
RE BEREZKERXIHZ
FHMIANERR MEBFRME
HZBEAZXHENRESERE
ERAZEER2RBENE » A1
BARLFEZEEZHMAR -

HREEXKAEEASHHAESS
STEflzE+LtEET =R ¥
ME - BEXEZBREEEZR
B O BETHHEYE BRERR
BEEHMEE BRAEELRER
—hWhhEFAA=Z+HAEI 2L
REEEHMHE HEBELF
HEEEMz2BECHAEMRE
B ZEENBEREB (WA
ms) TEBESEEHFERED
HEER BEFEARAEE - 2%
EREELESITEFAR  H
FEE2EMBELSEIAREE
A oo

TEEABRL HEYERR
REVXER HEELAERSE
ReREERERBEHNER#
Ho-RBAEIHEZSNER -
LERBEEEMRER 2HH
BREEBERLE °

FHESHBREEMELE 2 W HE
FERNRZEEZHER AR
FHEEZEZRESE  LHRIAN
BHER® -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less

depreciation. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly aftributable costs of bringing the asset to its present
working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the asset has been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged to the
income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of the asset, the expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of the asset.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by
paragraph 72 of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No.
17 Property, Plant and Equipment issued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants from the requirement to make regular revaluations
of the Group’s land and buildings which had been carried at
revalued amounts prior to 30th September, 1995, and accordingly
no further revaluation of land and buildings is carried out. In
previous years, the revaluation increase arising on the revaluation
of these assets was credited fo the revaluation reserve. Any future
decreases in value of these assets will be dealt with as an expense
to the extent that they exceed the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of the same asset. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Leasehold properties that have been transferred from investment
properties are stated in the balance sheet at their carrying value
at the date of transfer, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and amortisation. On the retirement or disposal of
such properties, the former attributable revaluation reserve is
realised through the income statement.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contined)

TEEHBARBE (F)
BR BERRM (R)
E-EEXTREREETHRE
ERHEEEE UEREME
BRERTREHRE - EREE
EUNERER  HAEHRK
ReRBERTERFAZHR
# o

NE BREERIKEB2Z2HEDRE
R T FEFHERESREUATIE
ZHMEHER RS HENATER
E

B E 2%
LR 25%
HRE -£BRRE 25%
M E & s 15% — 25%
IAERIRE 50%
AE K R 25%

BABANREZEEDRAL
BHARER  LABEEZH
AEEHERE -

M E®
BANEREEZANSERRER 2
RA - EAMREMGETTRHFS
FEEHR - UFHEE  BER
EHE o HEERABERNEESXHZ
BETBRESRRE HXH$
REZHERXEH -

ME2B”E
MEARJERDR RS E
FEBBFHERITZRA
EHEBFEIREE  EAQ
AEHENESE2ARIEE
ZERMAE -

BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Where the recoverable amount of an asset has declined below its

carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to reflect the
decline in value. In determining the recoverable amount of assets,
expected future cash flows are not discounted to their present
values.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of
property, plant and equipment, over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold properties 2%
Leasehold improvements 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 25%
Plant and machinery 15% - 25%
Toolings and moulds 50%
Motor vehicles and vessels 25%

Assets held under hire purchase contracts are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

Intellectual property

The cost of acquiring rights to the intellectual property for the
production of new products is capitalised and amortised, using the
straight line method, over their useful lives from the date of acquisition
or the licence period, whichever is the shorter. Where the
circumstances which have justified the deferral of the expenditure no
longer apply, or are considered doubtful, the expenditure, to the
extent to which it is considered to be irrecoverable, will be written off
immediately to the income statement.

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share capital, or
controls more than half of the voting power, or where the Company
controls the composition of its board of directors or equivalent
governing body.

57.
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BE-TZ-H=ZH=+—-HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance

sheet at cost, as reduced by any impairment losses recognised.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entferprise, over which the Group is in a position
to exercise significant influence, including participation in financial
and operating policy decisions.

The consolidated income statement includes the Group's share of
the post-acquisition results of its associates for the year. In the
consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are stated at
the Group's share of the net assets of the associates.

When the Group transacts with its associates, unrealised profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the relevant associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Investments in securities
Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified
as investment securities and other investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified
long-term strategic purpose, are measured at subsequent reporting
dates at cost, as reduced by any impairment loss that is other than
temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
and losses included in net profit or loss for the year.

Other assets
Other assets are stated at cost less provision, if necessary, for any
impairment losses recognised.
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BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where applicable,
costs of conversion and other costs that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, is
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as
adjusted for items which are non-assessable or disallowed. Timing
differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes of certain
items of income and expenditure in a different accounting period
from that in which they are recognised in the financial statements.
The tax effect of timing differences, computed under the liability
method, is recognised as deferred taxation in the financial statements
to the extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset will
crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Assets held under hire purchase contracts

Assets held under hire purchase contracts are capitalised at their
fair value at the date of acquisition. The corresponding liabilities
to the hirers, net of interest charges, are included in the balance
sheet as obligations under hire purchase contracts. The finance
costs, which represent the difference between the total hire purchase
commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged
to the income statement over the period of the relevant contract so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the lease terms.



T W

B R B e
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-TZ-H=ZH=+—-HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001
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—HEAHE BEEHEBMH
RRARERBARZEREDE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Research and development costs
Expenditure on research and development is charged to the income

statement in the period in which it is incurred except where a
major project is undertaken and it is reasonably anticipated that
development costs will be recovered through future commercial
activity. Such development costs are deferred and written off over
the life of the project from the date of commencement of commercial
operation.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the approximate rates ruling
on the dates of the transactions or at the contracted seftlement
rate. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies
other than Hong Kong dollars are re-translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. Gains and
losses arising on exchange are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas operations
which are denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars
are translated at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. All
exchange differences arising on consolidation are dealt with in
the translation reserve.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents represent short-term, highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which were within three months of maturity when acquired, less
advances from banks repayable within three months from the date
of the advance.
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BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

3. EXH 3. TURNOVER
#E (BR)
BAZEE
Contribution to
BERE operating
Turnover (loss) profit
2001 2000 2001 2000
TERT TR TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
[
IERESN By principal activity:
HEKEXK Continuing operations
TERHEE: Manufacture and sale of:
-ETHHA - electronic dictionaries 536,626 482,472 5,326 37,674
-FHERFEE - ODM electronic products 428,519 226,597 (35,018) 7,003
ZEFEM
- BAZEE - personal digital assistants 263,048 242,450 7,389 11,022
FRELEEY Discontinuing operations
TERHEE: Manufacture and sale of:
-ERER - pager products 357,770 431,652 (186,413) 15,976
-ZEREMER - rechargeable battery products 26,659 22,771 (7,999 (3,041)
BHBEzER Managing a football team - - (9,353 (12,838)
1,612,622 1,405,942 (226,068) 55,796
HEBNNRZER Loss on disposal of
leasehold properties (17,778) -
HE-HBLF Loss on partial disposal
MR BB of a subsidiary (7,542) -
BHERECHERE Provision for impairment in
value of investment securities (5,955) -
FBZH Interest expenses (12,912) (8,325)
HE-BERT Loss on disposal of an
ZEB associate (324) -
BEEEDRAXE Share of results of associates (2,120) (1,175)
BAl (& 8) &7 (Loss) profit before taxation (272,699 46,296

—F E R

By -
B -
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BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

3. EXE (&) 3. TURNOVER (Continued]
#E (BR)
BAZEAE
Contribution to
ERE operating
Turnover (loss) profit
2001 2000 2001 2000
TERT TERT TERT TR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[
BHEMESR : By geographical market:
HEKEXK Continuing operations
BiE Hong Kong 112,693 247,604 13,827 29,115
hE - FBRM The People’s Republic of China
(“PRC"), other than Hong Kong 358,546 257,970 7,314 11,718
=R ik Other Asian markets 566,881 253,141 (44,082) 7,187
1 EM North America 96,648 123,505 (193) 4,460
Y Europe 20,883 25,551 (78) 988
RR Middle East 57,347 37,924 761 1,646
Hity Others 15,195 5,824 148 585
FRELEEY Discontinuing operations
B8 Heng Kang 10,640 21,000 (14,866)  (12,061)
HE PRC 312,404 352,643  (157,255) 9,168
Hh Mm% Other Asian markets 33,495 57,505 (17,193) 2,128
L EM North America 21,915 19,145 (11,355) 709
B Europe 5,975 4130 (3,096) 153
1,612,622 1,405,942 (226,068) 55,796
HEBNNRZER Loss on disposal of leasehold
properties (17,778) -
HE-HBLF Loss on partial disposal of
MR BB a subsidiary (7,542) -
BHERECHERRE Provision for impairment in
value of investment securities (5,955) -
FEZH Interest expenses (12,912) (8,325)
HE-BZAFZER  Loss on disposal of an associate (324) -
BEEEDRXE Share of results of associates (2,120) (1,175)
BAl (& 8) &7 (Loss) profit before taxation (272,699 46,296
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4, BRILERH 4.
REAEEESRBEBLEELEER
HEEYKERRXTEMHEEDE
mZMBARARELEEEREZE
b ﬁ&ﬁﬁm ceEHEEER
RUENEE fMERAREBZ
@%ﬁ*$$§£%@%ﬁ%u
FEBFEBHNER  BRHHE
E-_ZZ-—FREAUTHEE °

HE-Z%-

FZA=+—-RLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

During the year, the board of directors approved a plan to dispose
of its subsidiaries engaged in the manufacture and sale of pager

products, rechargeable battery products and the managing of a
football team. The disposal is consistent with the Group’s long-
term strategy to focus its activities in other core businesses. The
Group is actively seeking buyers for the above mentioned
discontinuing operations and hopes to complete the sale by the
end of 2001.

5. il A 5. OTHER REVENUE
2001 2000
FET THER
HK$000 HK$'000
[
HMBADMMT © Other revenue is analysed as follows:
R 44 5% 1 AR 7% W &= ODM services income 9,972 -
E 5 W s Exchange gain 4,759 7,913
HEWE - BMEFMRKME Gain on disposal of property,
Wi (HBEYWHETS  plant and equipment,
ER) other than leasehold properties 2,804 -
REREHWRA Football match and sponsorship income 2,492 5,310
A B A Interest income 2,332 1,184
HEREY Sales of scrap materials 882 2,634
HERER Z W& Gain on disposal of investment securities 515 15,827
Hity Others 21,971 6,076
45,727 38,944

6. 17 B X Wi

6.  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

TREAES

Administrative expenses include
the following:

&3R4 i B A B &5 8 Loss on partial disposal of a subsidiary

EEREZRBERE

Provision for impairment in value of
investment securities

2001 2000
TRRT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000
7,542 -

5,955
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BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

Al 7.

OPERATING (LOSS) PROFIT

B (BR)ER
SHIBR -

EEHEMTUEZ
FRAS (R ) 1 8
3Gl

neE:

HEEE
BREBAOEE
ZEE
B HEFERE :

FERE
ERB A

HEME BER
REZER

HRAMEZLE
AYEE

B T A AR (‘35 B RO
FAlcEEME R
Fff 5 36 2 IR K 12 Al
T &)

Operating (loss) profit has been
arrived at after charging:

Amortisation of intellectual property

Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation:
Owned assets
Assets held under hire purchase
contracts
Impairment in value of
pager products operations:
Provision for inventories
Provision for doubtful receivables

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment, other than
leasehold properties

Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments, stated on note 9 and
retirement benefit scheme
contributions stated on note 36)

Write-off of intellectual property

2001
TRRT

HK$’000
\____________________________________________________________________________________________ __________________________|

2000
TR
HK$'000

1,000 -
1,039 811
39,006 31,286
223 42
27,877 -
67,268 -
95,145 -
- 38
8,086 6,754
207,731 205,160
1,000 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (confinved)

BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

8. FE X W 8. INTEREST EXPENSES
2001 2000
FET THER
HK$’000 HK$'000
[
BAFE Interest on:
ARAFRNEIEE  Bank borrowings wholly repayable
Z|TREE within five years 11,025 8,319
BARBEFREE Bank borrowings not wholly repayable
BEZRITEE within five years 1,697 -
HBEEH Hire purchase contracts 190 6
12,912 8,325

9. EEM S 9. DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS
2001 2000
THET TER
HK$’000 HK$'000
(|
EEWD Directors’ fees:
HITES Executive - -
FHTES Non-executive 42 100
BAFHTES Independent non-executive 246 240
288 340
HB & ($47E=E) @ Other emoluments (executive directors):
i R H Ath 13 Al Salaries and other benefits 15,104 16,541
RKEF T EIMHE K Retirement benefit scheme
contributions 354 651
15,746 17,532

LI EEHMEeBREREMRTHP
WL EHTEE2MERZR
2,604,000 T (= F 2T & :
3,641,000 T) - R A WHER
HBRERBENTHAEER M
Bz -

The directors’ emoluments shown above include housing allowances
of HK$2,604,000 (2000: HK$3,641,000) payable to two of the
executive directors in lieu of the right waived by them under their
service contracts for the provision of free residential
accommodation.

ZE-EFR

-
"
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B

=

I Z-TZ-H=A=+-—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

EEME () 9. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
EEME=oATHRE : Emoluments of the directors were within the following bands:
2001 2000
EELAY EEAH
No. of No. of
directors directors
(|
£ 21,000,0005% T Nil - HK$1,000,000 5 7
1,000,001% 1,500,000t  HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 2 1
1,500,001% 2,000,000t  HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 3 3
3,500,0012 4,000,000 7t  HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 2
4,000,00124,500,00058 5t HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000 - 1
4,500,001Z5,000,00058 7t  HK$4,500,001 - HK$5,000,000 - 1

HE-ST-SR-FBTTF=
B=+-ALEE AXBELR
SHMETFEEFBRHEEM
AR A K S B B2 R 0
BEABUZEE B BRE
XHBEN  EEMBAEEA

R-ZZ2-ER_ZZTTF R
BHRAINATERES  H#E
ZHBH R LM E

During the years ended 31st March, 2001 and 2000, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. In addition, no directors waived any emoluments
other than as disclosed above.

EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2001 and 2000
were all directors of the Company and details of their emoluments

are included in note 9 above.



B8 W ox W

2

AL (&)

JIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (contined)

HE-Z%-

FZA=+—-RLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

M, BRERB (XH) 11. TAXATION CREDIT (CHARGE]
2001 2000
FTERT THERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
e e e
B (i) 8 The credit (charge) comprises:
BBAEHR Hong Kong Profits Tax
REE Current year - (3,482)
BEFERFEER Over(under)provision in prior years
(FE) 340 (388)
340 (3,870)
BINBIR Overseas taxation (1,240) (11)
(900) (3,881)
EER IR (3£ 27) Deferred taxation (note 27) 2,609 (429)
1,709 (4,310)

FEERAFEZRLEHBE - U
TABEBANESHELEE -

R-ZEEEE=A=t+—-—HLHE
E > BRMNEHRDMZEEMT
FE 3R B R Bl R B E16%Et &E o

FEEEPEZHBARAREE
REDHAEERE  KEAQF
ERARBRRABES  AKH
HBOPEZHBRARAFEER
BEOZETEABEES -

EEBEAFHHRME27

12 BREEE (BEE) &
EAXEB R REWGHE
270,139,000 T (ZEZT T F
A 41,986,000 ) KA - H
207,681,0008 T 2B (Z ==
F o E A 687,0008 T) B R A
AMERRANERE

—
S o

> A)H{ B

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Group incurred tax losses for the year.

For the year ended 31st March, 2000, Hong Kong Profits Tax was
calculated at 16% of the estimated assessable profit for that year.

As the Group's subsidiaries and associates in the PRC are Sino-
foreign joint venture enterprises, they are eligible for certain tax
holidays and concessions. Certain of the Group's subsidiaries in
the PRC are subject to a 50% reduction in respect of the income
tax charged for the year.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 27.

(LOSS) PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
Of the Group's loss attributable to shareholders of
HK$270,139,000 (2000: profit of HK$41,986,000), a loss of
HK$207,681,000 (2000: a profit of HK$687,000) has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

g

—E2F -

(=]
~
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B

I Z-TZ-H=A=+-—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

13. K& 13. DIVIDENDS
2001 2000
TERT FTHER
HK$’000 HK$'000
[
FHRESRKRZEAW  Interim dividend of HKnil cent
(ZEEEFER (2000: HKO.5 cent) per share, paid
0.5%1L) - 5,060
BEEABRESR Final dividend of HKnil cent
ZERMW(ZZZEFE  (2000: HKO.5 cent) per share,
B 1R0.5% L) proposed - 5,941
- 11,001

gR(EE) B A 14,
SRER (BB BRDERT I K

B E

14.

R-ZZEZEZEEEREBEBEERANT
R 1% % 7 441,986,000 T K 2 &
ERTTER REAGEZ
ROTERBREMEENBEESE
2 fn # F #5 2 1,023,064,3705"
g_"o

R-ZEZE-F BHRIREZT
EEEREBREERD  MALE
AEEBREERR -

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

REFEEREARREE (loss) earnings for the purposes of basic

(B8 BHN 2 (B#8) and diluted (loss) earnings per share:

B
REE (5B) BRI (Loss) profit for the year HK$(270,139,000) HK$41,986,000
REFESRER (B#8B) Weighted average number of

BNz EBRME ordinary shares for the purposes of

FHE basic (loss) earnings per share 1,182,656,887 1,012,769,472

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share is based on
the following data:

2001 2000

In 2000, the calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year of approximately HK$41,986,000 and on
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,023,064,370, after adjustment for the effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares which arose from share options outstanding during
the year.

In 2001, no diluted loss per share has been presented as the
exercise of the share options would result in a reduction in the
loss per share.
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BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

5. NEBRERFZE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RERE BE IR RE
HOWR DREER R & Rt RIR RE# #E
Furniture,
fixtures Plant Motor
Leasehold and and  Toolings  vehicles
Leasehold  improve- equip- machi- and and
properties ments ment nery moulds vessels Total
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TET TEL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
[ e e
350 THE GROUP
BABEE COST OR
VALUATION
RZZZEE At st April, 2000
MR-~ 249 426 21,892 69,152 79,829 42,573 9,167 472,039
B AR Exchange
realignment - - (124) - - (8) (132)
NE Additions 960 3,126 14,049 10,575 18,844 1,367 48,921
e Disposals 65,328)  (1,560)  (4,155] 848)  (1767)  (5357)  (79.015)
RZZZE-F At 31st March,
=B=1+-H 2001 185,058 23,458 78,922 89,556 59,650 5,169 441,813
g DEPRECIATION
RZZREE At 1st Aprl,
MR-~ 2000 24,022 16,819 47,090 37,527 28,638 6,278 160,374
B AR Exchange
realignment - - (62) - - (3) (65)
TEERE Provided for
the year 5,216 2,418 10,597 10,209 9,439 1,350 39,229
LERMR Eliminated on
disposals (5,429) o4)  (2,194) (378)  (1,384)  (3,778) (13,567
RZZZE-F At 31st March,
=RB=1+-H 2001 23,809 18,833 55,431 47,358 36,693 3,847 185,971
FERE NET BOOK VALUES
RZEZE-F At 31st March,
=B=1+-H 2001 161,249 4,625 23,491 42,198 22,957 1,322 255,842
RZZZEZE At 31st March,
=B=1+-H 2000 225,404 5,073 22,062 42,302 13,935 2,889 311,665

ZE-EFR

-
"
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BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

15.

NEBERRE (EF)
REFEHE - B EENEY
M HNBNEEEEREYN
¥ BERMBANAEREH
FEHE o

FIAREEROMEZREFE
B

UREEL - PHED
URPELH - PHELD

BRE-—-"B—-—ANAN=ZF~8A—H83F
AemE AEEDRES-REAS
ATEHFARREEBEERZEZ L i
FHE RELHFERE EZ@
FPEZEEYEEERATFESR
44,092,000/ 7T ° £ [& — &

AEEBTNAZEEFEHEBEZ -
EALXNEESE  BH500E -
EBERFZ2MAREF  TEHEMKH
HOEHRBENRERAFE °

NE BREERXEZ2EREEFES
EFREBEANERE ZEE
5,552,000 Tt (= & & F :
107,000 7T ) °

15.

In Hong Kong, medium-term leases

In the PRC, medium-term leases

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The leasehold properties stated at valuation were disposed of
during the year. The remaining assets in property, plant and

equipment are carrying at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The net book value of leasehold properties of the Group shown
above comprises:

2001 2000
TRRT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000

107,685
53,564

161,249

170,739
54,665

225,404

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1st June, 1993, the Group obtained
from a PRC party the right to use a piece of land in Dongguan,
PRC for a period of 50 years. The net book value of the land use
right together with buildings erected thereon, which has already
been included under leasehold properties, amounted to
HK$44,092,000. Under the same agreement, the Group is
committed to pay an annual management fee relating to the use of
land over 50 years. The related commitment payable in the
following year is disclosed as a lease commitment in note 39.

The net book value of property, plant and equipment includes an
amount of HK$5,552,000 (2000: HK$107,000) in respect of assets
held under hire purchase contracts.
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16. HBE#E

BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

16. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

- FE R

£ 3 3. |

BE

REAFEBERR
—ZF-F=A=t—HE
M

AEERE

REERE
R-ZZT-F=A=+—H
BmE#E
R-ZZT-F=A=+—H

THE GROUP
COST

Acquired during the year and balance
at 31st March, 2001

AMORTISATION

Provided for the year
Written off for the year

At 31st March, 2001

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31st March, 2001

TERT
HK$'000

2,000

1,000
1,000

2,000

7. RBMBRAAKE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

FEmEE
LR

Unlisted investments
Unlisted shares
i BHEREZHBERE Less provision for impairment

in value

4

THE COMPANY
2001 2000
F#T Fi# T
HK$/000 HK$'000
118,163 118,163
100,369 -
(151,371) .
67,161 118,163

LR ZEFEE
ARRAE-—B—- NI =F}
SEAMKSDAREE KA
DF 2B AEBEESER
EXEEFEZKREES
EMBAARFRERA
E 70 B ] ABE AR A A 7 R (B
BEEXR -

TEMBLAFFHIRNME

42

Bl 7 mm&ﬁm
o D F

[N

B
Z
e
5
in 1993.
A
& end of the year or at any time during the year.

The carrying value of the unlisted investments is based on the
book values of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries
attributable to the Group at the date on which the Company became
the holding company of the Group under a group reorganisation

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding at the

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42.

i -

n.
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I Z-TZ-H=A=+-—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

T5ME
THE GROUP
2001 2000
TRRT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000

EBEEEFE Share of net assets 22,278 20,428

TERELAFRRHINME
42 -

19. BHERE

Details of the principal associates are set out in note 42.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

¥5E
THE GROUP

2001 2000

TER TE T

HK$’000 HK$'000

[

MR AE S Equity securities:

twm BB Listed, Hong Kong 299 736

L Unlisted 47,985 6,058

48,284 6,794

FtaRpzHE Market value of listed shares 299 2,818

L EBEEAXEBRREY
32,000,000 T A EREBFEER QD
o HEREE19.69% EHR
RERLATDRESEM HEE
EBXAHMESBEERREE

IR e

Included above is the Group’s investment in Net Plus Company
Limited (“Net Plus”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong,
amounting to approximately HK$32 million. The investment
represents a 19.69% holding of equity interests of Net Plus. Net
Plus is engaged in the publishing of a health care magazine and
investment holding.
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BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

20. OTHER ASSETS

T5EME
THE GROUP
2001 2000
FTRET THER
HK$’000 HK$'000

S &% > KA{E Club debenture, at cost 466 466

21.

EsRAh SEFESZEBEEELH
EREFTHZEE -

1z

A
\§

\

=~

Raw materials
Work in progress

Finished goods

LB ¥ R 4 $19,389,000% T (=
ZEEHE 1 18,162,000 T ) * £
21 3,050,000 T (ZEE T F :
1,687,000/ &t ) & & & &
4,339,000 T (Z B2 T T &
6,288,000/ 5t) » B H IJE R
FE e

21.

In the opinion of the directors, the club debenture is worth at least
its carrying value.

INVENTORIES

T5EME
THE GROUP
2001 2000
TRRT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000

140,208 153,078
54,635 82,646
94,881 101,933

289,724 337,657

Included above are raw materials of HK$9,389,000 (2000:
HK$18,162,000), work in progress of HK$3,050,000 (2000:
HK$1,687,000) and finished goods of HK$4,339,000 (2000:
HK$6,288,000) which are carried at net realisable value.

- FE R

i -

Annual Report 2001



11

B WK M A

- (%

—
(=]
mE

)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

2. EWEERR
EEARTEFNEYNZRBFY
A 60Z 90H -

UWTHhhAEEEBERENENRE

ERRDN :

TE60K 0-60 days
61290k 61-90 days

HBiBIOK Over 90 days

23, H it W R =&
BEMmEKRKRAEEHER IO E
# {8 53550000080 (ZEBEEZE
F.ZEEBT) o

24, ERBEERR
UTHhAEEEBRLENERE

ERRD N :

TE60K 0-60 days
61290k 61-90 days

HBiBIOK Over 90 days

22.

23.

24,

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group allows an average credit period of 60-90 days fo its
trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the
balance sheet date:

2001 2000
TRRT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000

117,402 170,923
29,364 11,297
38,857 109,992

185,623 292,212

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Included in other receivables are proceeds from disposal of
leasehold properties amounting to HK$35,500,000 (2000:
HK$Nil).

TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance

sheet date:
2001 2000
TETRT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$'000

63,952 159,720
26,834 6,492
65,939 5,921

156,725 172,133
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. RITIEE

BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

25. BANK BORROWINGS

F5HE
THE GROUP
2001 2000
FET THER
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITEE Bank loans 103,562 110,633
EEREBER Trust receipt loans 75,428 69,437
RITEX Bank overdrafts 41,966 21,661
BBEX Mortgage loans - 5,853
220,956 207,584
WA Analysed as:
B Secured 161,459 150,482
IR 4R Unsecured 59,497 57,102
220,956 207,584
EEHROT : Repayable as follows:
THEB-—FEHEBEA Within one year or on demand 181,571 161,398
—FUEBRBBME  More than one year, but not
exceeding two years 9,195 22,463
MEULLERBEBASFE  More than two years, but not
exceeding five years 20,204 23,723
BEHUE More than five years 9,986 -
220,956 207,584
BN FREEEET  Less: Amount due within one year,
AR-—FREE included under current
Z A liabilities 181,571 161,398
AR—FRNEEZEZRE  Amount due after one year 39,385 46,186

- FE R

i -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

6. HESHNER 26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER HIRE PURCHASE CONTRACTS
F5HE
THE GROUP
2001 2000
FET THER
HK$'000  HK$'000
HBEANEK 2EEHR The maturity of obligations under
mr hire purchase contracts is
as follows:
THB—F Within one year 2,525 27
—FHUEBFBBMEF More than one year, but not
exceeding two years 1,922 70
MENLEFEBEE More than two years, but not
exceeding five years 724 -
5,171 97
BONRRBEET Less: Amount due within one year,
AR-—FREE included under current
2B liabilities 2,525 27
AR-—FREEZHNR Amount due after one year 2,646 70
e ————————————————
27. BB 1B 27. DEFERRED TAXATION
F5HE
THE GROUP
2001 2000
FET THER
HK$’000 HK$'000

ol ] Balance brought forward 2,609
REE (BME) X H (Written-back) provided for

(BtaE11) the year (note 11) (2,609)

Fe sy Balance carried forward -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contined)

R\%E'ﬁﬁ ﬁL’TﬂEEE(ﬁE)

REERR BEREARBER

MAT -

BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

27. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, the major components of deferred
taxation liability (asset), provided and unprovided, are as follows:

F5E
THE GROUP
FRERRE CES A ]
Provided Unprovided
2001 2000 2001 2000
TER TERT TER TERT
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000

23 E—r%fﬁfgiz Tax effect of timing
RExE differences attributable to:
RIBFER R Excess of tax allowances
SRITER over depreciation - 2,609 546 -
BB X Tax losses - - (26,595) -
- 2,609 (26,049) ;
|

EERBEETFAEHERRF
B BXREFAMBRER
HEAJRESRARERRDZBEE
AWER o

ARAAEAFENEEHIER
BEzZEREERE -

A deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses available to offset
future profits has not been recognised in the financial statements
as it is not certain that the tax losses will be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

The Company had no significant unprovided deferred taxation for
the year or at the balance sheet date.

g

—E2F -

7.
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BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

28. B &K 28. SHARE CAPITAL
BH®A FTET
Number
of shares HK$’000
[P
SRAE010BTRH Shares of HK$0.10 each
EE Authorised:
—EEEE=A=+—H At 31st March, 2000 and
E=—Z2Z2-—F5=A=+—H 31st March, 2001 1,500,000,000 150,000
ERTRHRE : Issued and fully paid:
—hWhhEMA—H At 1st April, 1999 1,004,301,029 100,430
THEEBLRRE Exercise of share options 11,740,000 1,174
il & IR 17 Placement of shares 100,000,000 10,000
—ZZTFMA—H At 1st April, 2000 1,116,041,029 111,604
TRELEIRE Exercise of share options 3,360,000 336
il & IR 17 Placement of shares 70,000,000 7,000
[ 85 & & 85 R 10 Shares repurchased and
cancelled (3,100,000) (310)
=23-%=A=+-8 At 315t March, 2001 1,186,301,029 118,630
e ——
RZZEZEZEFWOA+H» AAF On 10th April, 2000, the Company issued 20,000,000 new shares
% 17§ R 0.107% JT 2 20,000,000 %7 of HK$0.10 each at a price of HK$1.30 per share as a
R BREE1308BT  FAEB consideration for the acquisition of an investment. On 30th April,
A—REFEHZAEB -RZ-FZ 2000, the Company issued 50,000,000 new shares of HK$0.10
EEMA=Z1+tH AQABTHE each at a price of HK$1.27 per share to an independent third
% 0.107% jt Z 50,000,000%7 f& » 1 party. The proceeds were used to provide additional working
BEER12TERT K TBYUE= capital of the Group. These new shares were issued under the
EoZWABBERRAEEHN general mandate granted to the directors at the annual general
BreEESs HEHFROER meeting of the Company held on 23rd August, 1999 and rank
B-AANRENRZ+ZHARR pari passu with other shares in issue in all respects.

ARRBFAEZ-—RREMM
TEZEBEBRT YZAME
BEETROZEEER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contined)

BEA (&)
REFEE KA BBYXME
MAAAZBRHMT :

CA 7

Month of
repurchase

—E2TEMA  April, 2000

July, 2000

—ETTELA

LMERODEEEBREE -

KRB 2HBLARALEEE -
EYBLARAZRG °

BrARE
w"E-—NAN=F-—BNBHEHL
BERRFE  A2FTEAEE
KEE (BEA DT HEMKHE
DA ZHTER)RHEHBELERIR
B RETREASERELIRE
BRHAMLEXZ ARG EB
R Pz F W E80%E KM
EMERPZRSERRBEALALT
B - REBEELEAIRTERLE 2
BERREMBTZROHUE -
BZIATBBBARAERZE®
TRA10% e

28.

29.

BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

During the year, the Company had repurchased its own shares
through the Stock Exchange as follows:

SRIEEOIETT BRER

ZEERBA B& =& ERERERE
No. of

ordinary Aggregate
shares of Price per share consideration
HK$0.10 each Highest Lowest paid
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$

748,000 0.84
2,352,000 0.81

610,940
1,791,060

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted on 8th January, 1993,

the Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
executive directors, of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for shares in the Company at a price equal fo the higher
of the nominal value of the shares and 80% of the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the share option scheme may not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

ZEE-FF R

=]
(-]
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BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

29.

BErXRRE (F) 29.

BERBEZHEREAER 2 & &
FPRAZZEE-—F=ZA=Z+—-HZ
EWT

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The movement in the number of share options during the year and
the balance outstanding at 31st March, 2001 are as follows:

fTEAR

Exercisable period

—222% GORER EBREM _Z2T-%
REE mA-H T & #8 ZA=t+-H
Exercise At Exercised Cancelled At
price 1st April, during during  31st March,
per share 2000  the year the year 2001
B
HK$
1.07 610,000 - 610,000 -
0.28 1,200,000 600,000 - 600,000
0.24 680,000 - 300,000 380,000
0.32 850,000 - - 850,000
0.49 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
0.39 11,800,000 50,000 150,000 11,600,000
0.38 8,880,000 2,710,000 190,000 5,980,000
0.47 150,000 - - 150,000
0.65 9,760,000 - 1,070,000 8,690,000

36,430,000 3,360,000 2,320,000 30,750,000

“WAAFZANAECER-FRARAZEATIHER
9th February, 1996 to the business day preceding
9th February, 2001

“WAAEARLAEZER-FABLAACEATIHER
7th June, 1996 to the business day preceding 7th June, 2001

“ANEEZA+TERECRE-F=ATRAAIZRAIMAA
15th March, 1997 to the business day preceding
15th March, 2002

“AANE-AZTtRECER=F-ANRAZRAIMAA
27th January, 1998 to the business day preceding
8th January, 2003

“AANERANBE-REZF-ANBAZRKIAER
8th April, 1998 to the business day preceding
8th January, 2003

“AANEZRRBE-REZE-ANBAZRRIAER
6th February, 1999 to the business day preceding
8th January, 2003

—RRRFNA-t-AZ-2R=F-ANHAIZREIMA
22nd April, 2000 fo the business day preceding
8th January, 2003

—EEREENRT=AZ-FE=F-ANAAZRRIA
13th August, 2000 to the business day preceding
8th January, 2003

“EE-FCA\AE-ER=E-A/\AAZRRIMEA
8th February, 2001 to the business day preceding
8th January, 2003
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30. RESERVES
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AL (&)

“ZEZ-5ZA=+-HLEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

REME HbwR #%
RRAR EMER EHEN RORR HAES WEEA ERHG RER1 #n
Investment  Leasehold
properties properties  Capital
Share  revalu-  revalu- redempt-
premium ation ation ion  Special Goodwill Exchange Retained
account  reserve  reserve reserve  reserve reserve  reserve  profits  Total
Tén TExn TExn TEx TExn TExn  TExn  TExn  TEn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000
e ——————— e |
50 THE GROUP
“AAREBA-B At Tst April, 1999 212,039 6,390 3,483 105 (60,819) (152) 1442 285,151 447,639
TEELARE  Premium arising on
2 exercise of share opfions 3,650 - - - - - - - 3650
REREREZEE  Premium arising from
placement of shares 116,000 - - - - - - - 116,000
BORGZER  Share issue expenses (2757 - - - - - - - 2757
BNERBEZ  Exchange difference on
EXER franslation of overseas
operations - - - - - - 216 - 216
REERE Profit for the year - - - - - - - 41986 41986
Ks Dt - - - - - - = 001)  (11.001]
ZE2ETEMA-HB ATt April, 2000 328,932 6,390 3,483 105 (60,819) (152) 1658 316,136 595,733
TEELARE  Premium arising on
2 exercise of share opfions 881 - - - - - - - 881
EREREZEE  Premium arising from
placement of shares 58,500 - - - - - - - 58,500
REGRAEAERE Premium arising from shares
—BREFEE  issued for acquisifion of
ZRE an investment 24,000 - - - - - - - 24,000
REBRAKHE  Eliminated on share
repurchase 2,092) - - - - - - - 2,092)
EERR2ER  Share repurchase expenses () - - - - - - - 0]
REERDNER  Released upon disposal of
B leasehold properies - [6390)  (3,483) - - - - 3483 [6390)
RE-BHEAE  Aising from acquisifion of o
fiEs hsitiary - - - - - 15550) - - (15550
RWEBEAT  Adsing from acqisition of
mEE associates - - - - - (8,218 - - [8218)
BEBMERZ  Exchange difference on
EXER franslation of overseas
operations - - - - - - 332) - 332)
REEFE Loss for the year - - - - - - - (270,139) (270,139)
k- 1L At 31st March, 2001
=A=t-H 410,212 - - 105 (60,819) (23920) 1,326 49,430 376,384
EER: Attributable o:
ADARKEAT  The Company and
its subsidiaries 410,212 - - 105 (60,819) (15,702) 1326 64,247 399,369
BEAT s - - - - - g - 4767) (22,985
410,212 - - 105 (60,819) (23,920) 1,326 49,480 376,384
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BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

82

30.

i 5 (&) 30.

EERAINEBEUT AEE T #
EzBERRANBRME

REA—RH
FRBHBERRER

At 1st April
Share of associates’

during the year
At 31st March

R=A=+—~H

BHRHEGEARBzZHBLT 2
BROEEER2TRAQARN
E-—AN=Ftma&EEXAR
FBEBEEMBTZ2ROEELZ
=8

RESERVES (Continued)

Included in the above are the following Group's share of the post
acquisition reserves of the associates:

A ER
Accumulated losses
2001 2000
TET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000

(12,647) (11,472)

results

(2,120)
(14,767)

(1,175)
(12,647)

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares in 1993.
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BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

30. RESERVES (Continued)

Bs i § RE
BRAR WO B @ an
Retained
profits
Share Capital (Accumu-
premium  redemption Contributed lated
account reserve surplus losses) Total
ThAR ThAR ThAR ThAR ThAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
-
508 THE COMPANY
-AWAREBA-R At Tst April, 1999 212,039 105 58,086 121,164 391,394
TREBELIREZEE  Premium arising on exercise of
share options 3,650 - - - 3,650
BERD 2 EE Premium arising from placement
of shares 116,000 - - - 116,000
BrRH2ER Share issue expenses 2,757 ) - - - (2,757
REERN (Haf12) Profit for the year (note 12] - - - 687 687
ke Diviclnd: ; ; Sl (i001)
“ZEZEMA-A At Tst April, 2000 328,932 105 58,086 110,850 497,973
TRBELIREZEE  Premium arising on exercise of
share options 881 - - - 881
BERD 2 EE Premium arising from placement
of shares 82,500 - - - 82,500
ERBERT Eliminated on share repurchase 2,092) - - - 2,092)
BERZER Share repurchase expenses 9) - - - 9)
REERE (K 12) Loss for the year (nofe 12) - - - [207,681)  [207,681)
—2Z-%ZA=1+-H At 31st March, 2001 410,212 105 58,086 (96,831) 371,572

EABRITMBARAKADIR
BEAZHEARRESEALALTF
BOR-—NDWA=ZF LK EX
AERZEAWRBMETZALF

B EEZEH-

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of the subsidiaries at the date on
which they were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount
of the Company's shares issued for the acquisition at the time of
the group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares in 1993.

- FE R
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B -
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BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

30.

i e (&)
REBRE-AN-FDF%
(BB —MARZEARS
BARAIE - K ARFALET
FIERT  REAEHSBYES
BERSIENBRE

(@ EHEGEIHKEZEZE
2 NAEFHIKMGRER
EEERE X

by HEEZUZBREEER
HEEREBRTRARR
NEERZBE-

AAREZZEE-—"F=ZA=1+—
B SBEEMBEED RiERRE
(Z=Z % F 5 168,936,000/ T &
&) °

30.

RESERVES (Continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for

distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

The Company did not have any reserves available for distribution
to shareholders at 31st March, 2001 (2000: HK$168,936,000).
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BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

3. BB A (BB) R MR 31. RECONCILIATION OF (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE
KREXB2RER L TAXATION TO NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM
EFEREZRAD OPERATING ACTIVITIES

BRBE AT (B518) A
FEKBA
FE X
BiEBERNTXE

BR%EAI K K&t F B AT
& (B E) &5
NREREzEE
HBERE MR
nE
HERNNEZER
HENE  BMERRE
REMBLHMEZ
(B8) &7
HE—HE AT B0 RH
BB
HE-BENT2ER
HEREE S 2 Wz
BEREZAERE

B2 R E

-BEZBRE
-RYERRR Rz BHE
FEZED (1 m)

B R E IR A2 2 ()
Hitr R Sz | o ()
JE U 1 B AR R 2 B A
B BERNZEMOED)
HAt A MR 2B A0
BFREZED

B -BERARALZ
(8 )

BExBzRE ORE)
RARRR

(Loss) profit before taxation
Interest income

Interest expenses

Share of results of associates

Operating (loss) profit before
taxation and interest
Amortisation of intellectual property
Write—off of intellectual property
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of leasehold properties
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment,
other than leasehold properties
Loss on partial disposal of a subsidiary

Loss on disposal of an associate
Gain on disposal of investment securities
Provision for impairment in value

of investment securities
Impairment in value of pager

products operations:

- provision for inventories

- provision for doubtful receivables
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables
Decrease (increase) in other receivables
Increase in amounts due from associates
(Decrease] increase in trade payables
Increase in other payables
Decrease in deposits from customers
(Decrease) increase in amount due fo

an associate

Net cash outflow from operating activities

2001 2000
TERT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000
(272,699) 46,296
(2,332) (1,184)
12,912 8,325
2,120 1,175
(259,999) 54,612
1,000 -
1,000 -
39,229 31,328
17,778 -
(2,804) 38
7,542 -
324 -
(515) (15,827)
5,955 -
27,877 -
67,268 -
20,031 (113,239)
39,282 (86,688)
9,204 (22,910}
(16,090) (18)
(15,559) 58,839
9,500 47,818
(16,717) (7,341)
(816) 1,270
(66,510) (52,118)

—F E R
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Bl
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I Z-TZ-H=A=+-—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

i3

2. —WEB AR ZWE 32. PURCHASE OF A SUBSIDIARY
2001 2000
TER TE T
HK$/000 HK$'000
e e
BECEERE: Net assets acquired:
MBERE Intellectual property 2,000 _
mE Goodwill 15,550 -
17,550 -
FfiE Satisfied by:
BoB—-—MELQA Allotment of shares of a subsidiary
g of the Company 17,550 -
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33. FR@E
28 2 24

BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

33. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING

DURING THE YEAR

BERER iRe
&R BITER BERRR HRE
Obligations
Share capital under hire
and share Mortgage purchase
premium  Bank loans loans contracts
TERT THER TERT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
[
R=AANENA—-A At 1st April, 1999 312,469 70,432 19,711 123
TEEARREMRS Issue of shares upon exercise of
2B share options 4,824 - - -
BERH Placement of shares 126,000 - - -
BORH2ER Share issue expenses (2,757) - - -
FrEZRITHER New bank loans obtained - 62,171 - -
BEER Repayment of borrowings - (21,970 (13,858) 26)
R=ZZZ5£MA-A At 1st April, 2000 440,536 110,633 5,853 97
TEEARREMRS Issue of shares upon exercise of
Z B4 share options 1,217 - - -
BERH Placement of shares 63,500 - - -
B R 5 Repurchase of shares (2,402) - - -
mE/ BRTRGBER Share repurchase/issue expenses 9) - - -
FrEZzRITHER New bank loans obtained - 57,973 - -
BEER Repayment of borrowings - (65,044) 5,853) (828)
EtZBFSREER Other movements not involving
cash flows:
BOFROERES Shares issued in consideration for
EERENKE the acquisition of investment securities 26,000 - -
HIZBBAY Inception of hire purchase confracts - - - 5,902
RZZEE-F=F=+—-H At 3lst March, 2001 528,842 103,562 - 5,171

8171.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B

., TEEBERZ 34.
1. REAEEAEBURER
XABEA-BEXEARE
5,902,000 T 2 E & H
(ZZZZTF : &) -

2. REAFEEFXARABTER
HEOIOT Z2FB#H K -
EEERI1IZBETHERE
—FkETRERES °

3B. AREB 35.

REER  SHBLAIEEAZ
$E 17 @ & £181,233,0008 Tt (= &
T EE 214,523,000 T ) °

BRZERECERZE Bills discounted with recourse 22,182 14,822 - -
REBERTHELF Guarantees given fo banks in
Z—RBTHEM respect of general banking
ERTIEH 2 R facilities granted to
subsidiaries - - 246,137 271,337
22,182 14,822 246,137 271,337

I Z-TZ-H=A=+-—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

1. In the current year, the Group entered into hire purchase

arrangements in respect of assets with a total capital value
at inception of the leases of HK$5,902,000 (2000: HK$nil).

2. In the current year, the Company issued 20,000,000 new
shares of HK$0.10 each at a price of HK$1.30 per share
as a consideration for the acquisition of an unlisted
investment security.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

E 3 .| b S|
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000

TERT TER TERT TER
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000

The subsidiaries had utilised HK$181,233,000 (2000:
HK$214,523,000) of the banking facilities as at the balance sheet
date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved

36. R K& A G E

MERNBEFFTEIAREE Retirement benefit scheme
contributions to the Group's

BT BBRAEEEZ
HREAEER T2
N

BE WE Sz R

defined contribution schemes

Less: Forfeited contributions

BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

TEME
THE GROUP
2001 2000
TRRT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000

3,512 4,131
(2,194) (559)
1,318 3,572

FEBRAFMAESEKRRBEERAR
ERRBE2ZRMAKEAGE - ZFF
BB cEERAREEZ2EED
MIBAEENEESHEARMNR
EAES -

B-ZZEEF+-_F—-—B K
SERERFMEABESEAANEALA
BARBEAE  UFERFEED
BEsE - AEBLRAZENRE
MtEeERBeHRfEHE &
IE=-Z2ETF+-A—-HRA
BeRHERBREBEHIRIR
HSBC Provident Fund Trustee
(Hong Kong) Limited > %1 & T 2% &
MABGATES - EZBHAETHRE
MEdBBFHEABEETERM -

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme for
all qualifying employees. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of
trustees.

In the light of the introduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) Scheme, the Group has restructured its retirement
arrangements to comply with the MPF legislation. The Group has
secured MPF exemption status for the retirement benefit scheme
and participates in an approved MPF scheme with the HSBC
Provident Fund Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited effective December 1,
2000 to provide scheme choice to existing employees. All new
employees are required to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Mandatory benefits are being provided under the MPF Scheme.

—“ET -5 %R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I Z-TZ-H=A=+-—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

B

6. BURERNEFE (&) 36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME (Continued)
BRABANFEAXIHEAEBZT The retirement benefit scheme charge represents contributions
BRAMIBZERMGE @B payable to the scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules
RefMBEREREGSZHBERA of the scheme. Where there are employees who leave the scheme
BRHTE A AEEREZ prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
HUREAEREAEEEMS 2@ by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.
MEHE R-ZBEEZEERZEZ At 31st March, 2001 and 2000, there were no forfeited
—F5ZRA=t-HLE TREW contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in future
BeHRATEBRERZEE - years.

3. EXEE 37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

*%E
THE GROUP
2001 2000
FET THER
HK$’000 HK$'000

"

BRETRERA Capital expenditure contracted for
BEBERZEAZHE but not provided in the financial

statements in respect of:

BEWX BERRE Acquisition of property, plant and

equipment 4,014 4,793

RERFELTES Investment in unlisted securities 2,500 -
REN—BE DT Investment in an associate - 389
6,514 5,182

KARR=-ZZEZE-—F=ZA=1+— The Company had no significant capital commitments at 31st
Bt EERZERKIE o March, 2001.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (confinved)

Hih & E

ZE-EFR

—FRAZXWAEEWNT :  Commitments payable within
one year in respect of
licensing arrangements:

—F R Within one year - 486
REZZFELFR In the second to fifth year inclusive - 4,914
- 5,400

R-ZZEE-F=ZRA=1t—-B%2
ATEBXEEMERZEER
=,

B RE

REHR ASERETYEY
FASHEERNEE TRE o
ZERERRTEEASHN 25
BT

RT 5B ERZ Operating leases which expire:
BERD -
—FR Within one year 1,443 527
RE—ZZEREFR In the second to fifth year inclusive 7,002 5,926
8,445 6,453

ARAR-EE-F=RA=1-
ATHEEREEHNOEAE -

BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

38. OTHER COMMITMENTS

TEME
THE GROUP
2001 2000
TRT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000

©
=1

The Company had no significant licensing commitments at 31st
March, 2001.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had certain commitments

under non-cancellable operating leases for premises. The portion
of such commitments which is payable within the next year is as

follows:
2001 2000
TETRT TERT
HK$’000 HK$’'000

The Company had no significant operating lease commitments at

31st March, 2001.

-
"
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

40 EER#®
REEH  AEEBEKETEE
BHREAANEBFME —RBTHE
EzER FEBANEEREE
BWT :

GERSEIE S
BHREE

Bills receivables

M., EEBREHE
R=ZZEE2-FHAF=-+=H K
NEEHEEPDAER AR A A
([GSPDAl) MBI FE=EFFEHE
ERZEHZE (ZIHE]) - BRI
E O EZBIE=ZZ2EERBE
GSPDA 171,818/k B £ % » #9 1h
GSPDARZEEHE BT 2R AEY
19% R ERBEZ216% €HEAN B
81,900,000 T °

40.

Leasehold properties

41.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group has pledged certain assets
as security for general banking facilities granted to the Group.

The carrying value of the assets pledged is as follows:

2001 2000
TRRT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000

117,157 168,791
- 2,474

117,157 171,265

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 22nd May, 2001, a share purchase agreement (the
“Agreement”) was entered into by the Company, Group Sense
PDA Holdings Limited (“GSPDA”) and independent third parties.
Pursuant to the Agreement, the independent third parties agreed
to subscribe a total of 171,818 preferred share of GSPDA,
representing approximately 19% and 16%, respectively, of the
entire issued share capital of GSPDA as at the balance sheet date
and as enlarged by the issue thereof at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$81,900,000.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contined)

IEWBAARE S
ARES
R-ZZEE-F=ZA=Z+t-H" ' &
RATEMBARAZHFRBOT
WELRER oA R

Place of

incorporation/
Name of subsidiary registration
RERZEEETH mEARLANE
Dongguan Chang People’s Republic

An Group Sense of China

Electronics Facfory

Eropush Trading Limited

Group Sense (China)
Limited

BEEEBNARAA
Group Sense Cyberspace
Limited

Group Sense [Dongguan|

Limited

Group Sense (Holding)
Limited

EERZES
British Virgin
Islands

EERZES
British Virgin
Islands

BEZ

Western Samoa

EERZES
British Virgin
Islands

EERZES
British Virgin
Islands

HE-Z%-

FZA=+—-RLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31st March,
2001 are as follows:

BRTRAE
HERRF
EmEs

Issued and fully
paid up ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

11,300,000/ 7t
HK$11,300,000

(E
Us$1

(E
Us$1

100% 7T
Us$100

10% 70
us$10

3,000% 7t
US$3,000

FLRAEHR
BRTRSF
HEESL
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital
held by the Company

E& &
Directly Indirectly
% %

- 100
- 75
100 -
100 -
- 100
100 -

TERE

Principal activities

93 .
ETERLEREE

Manufacture and trading
of electronic products

HFRESER
Holding of the licenses
of intellectual properties

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

HENE
Property holding

REER

Investment holding
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BE-ZZ-F=ZB=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001
42. TEMRE L AR B E 42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND
NEBEH (&) ASSOCIATES (Continued)
BRTRAE FLRER
LERRE/ ERITERSF
WELRER HMBIE EREE HEERL TERE
Issued and fully Proportion of
Place of paid up ordinary nominal value of
incorporation/ share capital/ issued capital
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
E& W &
Directly Indirectly
% %
Group Sense Investment ~ EBREZEE (E 100 - RELR
Limited British Virgin Us$1 Investment holding
Islands
BERERAA 2 1,008 7. * - 100 ETEmRIREE
Group Sense Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000* Design and trading of
electronic products
REHERRAT EERLES (E - 100 EfEMLE
Group Sense Manufactory  British Virgin Us$1 Manufacture of
Company Limited Islands electronic products
BEPDARRERAT HERSR 90,000% 7T 75 - RAER
Group Sense PDA Cayman Islands US$90,000 Investment holding
Holdings Limited
BEZLERARAR ZFB 100% 7t - 75 BABREYEER
RitREE
Group Sense PDA Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$§100 Design and trading of
PDA products
Group Sense (S.E.A) ABELES (E 100 - RELZR
Limited British Virgin Us$1 Investment holding

Islands
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contined)

WELRER

Name of subsidiary

Group Sense Singapore
Pte Limited

Group Sense Technology
[Singapore] Pte Limited

GSL Research Technology
Limited

HEETERAA
Max Power Electronics
Limited

BEOIMETR
BRAA

Max Power (Jiangmen]
Electronics Facfory
Limited

o 6

Place of
incorporation/
registration

MR
Republic of
Singapore

HmR

Republic of
Singapore

AEELES
British Virgin
Islands

Hong Kong

PEARLNE
People’s Republic
of China

HE-Z%-

FZA=+—-RLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND

ASSOCIATES (Continued)

BRTRAE
HERREF
EMEs

Issued and fully
paid up ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

500,000% 1 % &
$$500,000

1,000,000%7 3% 7t
$$1,000,000

(E
Us$1

1,000,000 7t
HK$1,000,000

3,000,000 7t
HK$3,000,000

FLRAEHR
BRTREF
HEESW
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital
held by the Company
E& &
Directly Indirectly
% %

TERE

Principal activities

RUERAERR
MR %

Provision of software
consultancy and
research and
development services

RUNTRE
Provision of research and
development services

RARRHER
Holding and licensing of
frademarks

EtREFEMER
Trading of batteries and
electronic products

EEREFERLE
Production of batteries
and electronic products
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BE-TZ-H=ZH=+—-HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

42.

T W

AL (&)

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

FLAEHR
BRTRSF
HEESL
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital
held by the Company
E& el &
Directly Indirectly
% %

- 100

TERE

Principal activities

RENE
Property holding

REER

Investment holding

RUEBERE

Provision of administrative services

KEER

Managing a football team

REER

Investment holding

TEMBRAARYEE 42.
AR EN (&)
BRTRAE
HERRF
MEXT&E o A R EMEs
Issued and fully
Place of paid up ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital
ABRBEERAT E# 27
Muto Limited Hong Kong HK$2
Supreme Style EERZES 100% 7t
Technology Limited British Virgin Us§100
Islands
Sushi Trading Limited E# 27
Hong Kong HK$2
ESERAT E# 27
Top Promotor Limited Hong Kong HK$2
BEREERALT i 100% 7T
Ultimate Winner Hong Kong HK$100
Investments Limited
* REERADERERTER *

HEEIBTERERFSRE
iF 3E A% 19 200,0008% * HEE =S
EEREBERELEEFHESR
I FE A% 40 b 4B B B R iR B =R
EEBHAALATMAREARE
ZCEEIEEAARRAENR
RABLEZECER  TER
EEBRRSHEEMIIR - A&
ECEEEROGBEARET —
ER U EE KRB SR D 2R
B HE o

Group Sense Limited also has in issue 200,000 non-voting 5%
deferred shares of HK$1 each, which are held equally by Tam
Wai Ho, Samson and Tam Wai Tong, Thomas. The deferred shares
practically carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or
to attend or vote at any general meeting of the company or to
participate in any distribution on winding up. The Group has
been granted an option by the holders of the deferred shares to
acquire these shares at a nominal amount.
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JIA

BE-ZZ-FZB=t+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

FTEREBARRYEE 42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND
N\

AEl B8 (&) ASSOCIATES (Continued)
REEREERLCANTEAKLE All of the subsidiaries operate in their place of incorporation or
S MEHMAKMEBRARIYRAE registration except for Group Sense Manufactory Company Limited,
8 A 3L i B K o which operates in the PRC.
MEERZER L@ EQF The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
RUAREZAEARRM iﬁ E j( opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
FECHBAR  EBRAAF fthe G To aive details of ofh bsidiari Id in th
AR EEBHEAT  BEBA of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
4 o opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
W-—EE—-&#=H=+—-8 &« Details of the Company’s principal associates at 31st March, 2001
EETE oML AT S HEMD are as follows:
T :
FARMERAERT
KzEEES UL
Proportion of
nominal value of
B A% 3L 3t B issued capital held
REATRHE Place of indirectly by TERH
Name of associate registration the Company Principal activities
RINEREREREARLT PEARENE 48% Rt E BB B
Shenzhen Kezhi Language People’s Republic Design and development
Information Processing Co. Ltd. of China of software
FEEBERLA RERLES 40% LEERBREBR
GGl Technology Limited British Virgin Islands Manufacture of high-end
fouch screen panels
ABITER)ERLA MEES 33% ij‘xf“f MERHES T
Lango IT (Holdings) Limited Cayman Islands EEE2ERH
Design, development and
sale of electronic
language learning devices
ARNBEERERLF EED 20% RUBBABRIRERRS
Wisdom Technology Holdings Western Samoa EH AR R
Limited Provision of infernet

solutions and design and
development of software

97.
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HE-Z%-

43.

EBEALTRSF
AEBR-_ZZZTFOHE QT
HE 2 £ 8 # 55,000,000/ T °
RZZEEZEFE=H= +—E|’§&
EQNRAXATXEBZIARA B
1,000,000 T °

huj

AEEREFAOD—FBEBEEAAR
—MEQNAZBEER  2E5
Bl % 515,000,000 T (Z 2 Z2Z
% : 10,000,000 Jt) & 15,000,000
5%7‘3(—%%%$'150000005%

)  BEEXLEELBBEER
Tﬂiﬁ*%ﬁo

MEXBRATHERETS -
ERATBEBTESEN A
WA A £ — 55 E b 2 A
e o

43.

FZA=+—-RLEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2001

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In 2000, the Group sold goods to associates amounting to
approximately HK$5 million. The amounts due from associates at

31st March, 2000 were approximately HK$1 million.

During the year, the Group purchased goods from a related
company and an associate amounting to approximately HK$15
million (2000: HK$10 million) and approximately HK$15 million
(2000: HK$15 million) respectively. Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas,
has a beneficial interest in the related company.

The above transactions were carried out at market prices or, where
no market price was available, at cost plus a percentage profit
mark-up.
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Financial Summary

eS| RESULTS

BEFE=H=1T—HLEE

Year ended 31st March,
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
TR TR TR TET TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

- FE R

B Turnover 729,344 1,114,489 1,123,121 1,405,942 1,612,643
Bt Al (B518) B A (loss) Profit before taxation 63,436 93,805 52,900 46,296 (272,699)
BIEAE (R ) Taxation credit (charge) (3,633) (4,093) (2,485) (4,310) 1,709
R DBRR (loss) Profit before
A (B51R) B F  minority interests 59,803 89,712 50,415 41,986 (270,990)
LBRRER Minority interest 698 293 - - 851
KEE (BE)EF  (loss) Profit for the year 60,501 90,005 50,415 41,986 (270,139)
[ 850 Dividends 29,485 29,976 10,079 11,001 -
|
EEHEBE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
W=B=+-—8
At 31st March,
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

TER TER TER TER TERT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

EEZER Total assets less
hEBEE current liabilities 493,881 555,603 605,257 756,202 561,240
FRBEE Non-current
el s (49,018)  (48,007)  (57,188)  (48,865) (42,031)
LBRRER Minority interests (207) - - - (24,195)
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 444,656 507,596 548,069 707,337 495,014

i -
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Particulars of Major Properties

AEER-ZE-FZA=Z+—-HH#E Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31st March, 2001
BEZEEMEFBUOT : are set out below:

BW B R FH
Name/location Type Lease term

Leasehold properties:

1. EREHFERRER2IBRHERE [ZES T F
2701 Z2710E
Units 2701-2710, Wu Chung House Commercial Medium-term lease

213 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

2. NENEERBFEIRENIBH O I T F
100 212 5 13-24%% T 35 K 1 B P25%
R P3FFEMA
Workshop Nos. 13 to 24 on 2nd Floor Industrial Medium-term lease

and Car Parking Space Nos. P2 and P3
on Basement, Sino Industrial Plaza

9 Kai Cheung Road

Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

3. RERZBEEEFRREZTTRRZHE I T F
EVEBEBENIXE
Dongguan Chang An Group Sense Industrial Medium-term lease
Electronics Factory,
Fourth Industrial Zone, Wushe
Chang An, Dongguan
The People’s Republic of China
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